

# Mitsubishi Electric Industrial Robot

CR800-D/R/Q series controller

# MELFA Smart Plus User's Manual

2F-DQ510 2F-DQ511 2F-DQ520 2F-DQ521



# ▲ Safety Precautions

Before using the robot, always carefully read the precautions below as well as the separate "Safety Manual" and take all necessary safety measures.

A. These show precautions based on the Ordinance on Industrial Safety and Health (Articles 36, 104, 150, 151).



B. This shows precaution points given in the separate "Safety Manual". For details, please read the text of the "Safety Manual".





Never make alterations on your own judgment or use maintenance parts other than those designated. Doing so can cause breakdown and malfunctions.



**ARNING** When moving the robot arm from the outside, never stick a hand or finger into an opening. Depending on the posture, the hand or finger could get caught in the equipment.

Do not stop the robot or perform an emergency stop by switching the robot controller's main power supply OFF. If the robot controller's main power supply is switched OFF during automatic operation, this can reduce the robot's precision. It could result in collisions with peripheral device or the like due to arm drop or inertia.



When rewriting a program, parameters, or other internal information within the robot's controller, do not switch the robot controller's main power supply OFF. If the robot controller's main power supply is switched OFF during automatic operation, or while a program or parameter is being written, there is a danger of the internal information in the robot controller being corrupted.



Do not connect the Handy GOT when using the GOT direct connection function of this product. Failure to observe this may result in property damage or bodily injury because the Handy GOT can automatically operate the robot regardless of whether the operation rights are enabled or not.



Do not connect the Handy GOT to a programmable controller when using an iQ Platform compatible product with the CR800-R/CR800-Q controller. Failure to observe this may result in property damage or bodily injury because the Handy GOT can automatically operate the robot regardless of whether the operation rights are enabled or not.



Do not remove the SSCNET III cable while power is supplied to the multiple CPU system or the servo amplifier. Do not look directly at light emitted from the tip of SSCNET III connectors or SSCNET III cables of the Motion CPU or the servo amplifier. Eye discomfort may be felt if exposed to the light. (Reference: SSCNET III employs a Class 1 or equivalent light source as specified in JIS C 6802 and IEC60825-1 (domestic standards in Japan).)



Do not remove the SSCNET III cable while power is supplied to the controller. Do not look directly at light emitted from the tip of SSCNET III connectors or SSCNET III cables. Eye discomfort may be felt if exposed to the light. (Reference: SSCNET III employs a Class 1 or equivalent light source as specified in JIS C 6802 and IEC60825-1 (domestic standards in Japan).)

Attach the cap to the SSCNET III connector after disconnecting the SSCNET III cable. If the cap is not attached, dirt or dust may adhere to the connector pins, resulting in deterioration connector properties, and leading to malfunction.



Make sure there are no mistakes in the wiring. Connecting differently to the way specified in the manual can result in errors, such as the emergency stop not being released. In order to prevent errors occurring, please be sure to check that all functions (such as the teaching box emergency stop, customer emergency stop, and door switch) are working properly after the wiring setup is completed.

# 

Use the network equipments (personal computer, USB hub, LAN hub, etc) confirmed by manufacturer. The thing unsuitable for the FA environment (related with conformity, temperature or noise) exists in the equipments connected to USB. When using network equipment, measures against the noise, such as measures against EMI and the addition of the ferrite core, may be necessary. Please fully confirm the operation by customer. Guarantee and maintenance of the equipment on the market (usual office automation equipment) cannot be performed.



**N** To maintain the safety of the robot system against unauthorized access from external devices via the network, take appropriate measures. To maintain the safety against unauthorized access via the Internet, take measures such as installing a firewall.

## User's Manual Revision History

Printing Date	Manual No.	Revision Contents
2017-06-30	BFP-A3559	First edition
2018-02-01	BFP-A3559-A	The CR800-Q controller was added.
2018-09-01	BFP-A3559-B	•2F-DQ520 and 2F-DQ521 were added.
1		
1		
1		

\*Introduction

Thank you for purchasing this MELFA Mitsubishi Electric industrial robot. This instruction manual describes the explanation of the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack option.

Be sure to read this manual before using it and ask MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack to use it after fully understanding the contents.

Although we strive to describe special handling as much as possible in this book, please interpret the items not described in this document as "can not".

This manual is described on the premise that basic operations and functions of Mitsubishi Electric Industrial Robots are understood. For basic operation, please refer to the separate manual "Detailed explanation of functions and operation".

## Notation method in this document

This indicates an item for which incorrect handling could present imminent danger of death or serious injury.



This indicates an item for which incorrect handling could present a danger of death or serious injury.

This indicates an item for which incorrect handling could present a danger of injury. It could also present a danger of just physical damage.

- No part of this manual may be reproduced by any means or in any form, without prior consent from Mitsubishi.
- The details of this manual are subject to change without notice.
- The specification value is based on our standard test method.
- An effort has been made to make full descriptions in this manual. However, if any discrepancies or unclear points are found, please contact your dealer.
- This specifications is original.
- Company names and product names described in this document are trademarks or registered trademarks of each company.
- <sup>®</sup> and TM are omitted in the text of this guide.

Copyright(C) 2017-2018 MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION ALL RIGHTS RESERVED

## Contents

1.	Usage	1–1
1.1	How to Use this Document	1–1
2.	Confirmation before use	2–2
2. 1	Product confirmation	
3.	MELFA Smart Plus card	
3. 1		
3.	. 1. 1 Functions of A-type	
3.	. 1. 2 Functions of B-type	
3. 2	Installing/removing and setting of the MELFA Smart Plus card	3–5
3.	. 2. 1 Installing/removing of the MELFA Smart Plus card	3–5
3.	. 2. 2 Setting of the MELFA Smart Plus card (Only MELFA Smart Plus card)	3–8
3. 3	Robot language specification	3–9
3.	. 3. 1 Robot status variable list	3–9
3.	. 3. 2 Detailed explanation of robot (system) state variable	3–9
3. 4	Frror list	3–12
4.	Calibration assistance function	4–13
4. 1	Outline	4–13
4. 2	2 Automatic Calibration	4–15
4. 3	3 Workpiece coordinate calibration	4–34
4. 4	Inter-robot relational calibration	4–56
4. 5	Robot Programming Language	4–61
4.	. 5. 1 Language list	4–61
4.	. 5. 2 Language detailed description	4–62
5.	Robot mechanism temperature compensation function	5–77
5. 1	Specification	5–77
5.2	Precautions	5–78
5.	. 2. 1 Please enable this function from the beginning	5–78
5.	. 2. 2 Accuracy is not obtained near the singular point and the vicinity of the motion range	5–78
5.3	Parameter setting	5–79
6.	Coordinated control for additional axes	6–81
6. 1	Calibration of base coordinates	6–82
6.	. 1. 1 Overview	6–82
6.	. 1. 2 Specification	6–82
6.	. 1. 3 Operation procedure	6–83
6.	. 1. 4 Parameter setting	6–83
6. 2	2 Base coordinate cooperative control	6–84
6.	. 2. 1 Overview	6–84
6.	. 2. 2 System configration	6–87
6.	2. 3 Specification	6–88
6.	2. 4 Operation procedure	6–90
6.	2. 5 Parameter setting	6–91
6.	2. 6 Creatinn of robot program	6–92
6. 3	3 Additional axis tracking	6–94
6.	3. 1 Specification	6–94

6. 3. 2 System configuration	6–95
6. 3. 3 Specification	6–97
6. 3. 4 Operation procedure	
6. 3. 5 Parameter setting	6–100
6. 3. 6 Creation of robot program	6–104
6. 3. 7 Installation of a sample program	6–112
6. 3. 8 Calibration of Robot and Base Coordinate Systems ("A1" program)	6–113
6. 3. 9 Resistration of User Mechanism Work Position ("B1" program)	6–118
6. 3. 10 Work Base Position Registration ("C1" program)	6–122
6. 3. 11 Teaching and Setting of Adjustment Variables ("1" program)	6–126
6. 4 Troubleshooting	6–132
7. Appendix	
7.1 Display of option card information	

# 1. Usage

This chapter explains the items to be checked and precautions before using the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack.

## 1.1 How to Use this Document

This document explains the functions of the MELFA Smart Plus card as shown in Table 1–1. For the functions provided by the standard robot controller and how to operate them, refer to the "Instruction Manual" attached to the robot controller.

The functions not described in Table 1-1 are explained in the separate instruction manuals. Refer to the following instruction manuals.

- Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision (BFP-A3626)
- Preventive Maintenance (BFP-A3625)

## Table 1-1 Contents of this instruction manual

Chapter	Title	Description
1	How to Use this Document	It explains how to use this manual (MELFA Smart Plus card Instruction manual). Please read this before actually using MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack.
2	Confirmation before use	When purchasing the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack, please confirm the necessary products and check the version of the robot controller.
3	MELFA Smart Plus card	This product explains the function list and installation method to the robot controller.
4	Calibration assistance function	We will describe the calibration support function using 2D vision sensor.
5	Robot mechanism temperature compensation function	Explain the robot mechanism temperature compensation function.
6	Coordinated control for additional axes	Explain the coordinated control for additional axes.
7	Appendix	This section explains how to display card information of MELFA Smart Plus card in RT ToolBox3.

# 2. Confirmation before use

## 2.1 Product confirmation

The standard configuration of the product you purchased is as follows. Please confirm.

No.	Component name		Model name	Quantity
(1)	Instruction manual (this CD-ROM)		BFP-A3563	1
(2)	MELFA Smart Plus card pack	A-type	2F-DQ510	One of the four
		AB-type	2F-DQ520	models included
	MELFA Smart Plus card	A-type	2F-DQ511	
		B-type	2F-DQ521	

Note) The numbers in the table correspond to the numbers in the figure below.



Figure 2-1 Items contained in the delivered product

#### 3. **MELFA Smart Plus card**

MELFA Smart Plus card ...... You can select and use one of the functions according to the MELFA Smart

Plus card type. Refer to "3.1 List of function" for the details of functions. MELFA Smart Plus card pack ...... You can use all the functions according to the MELFA Smart Plus card pack type. Refer to "3.1 List of function" for the details of functions.

Functions	A-type	B-type
Calibration assistance function	0	×
Robot mechanism temperature compensation function	0	×
Coordinated control for additional axes	0	×
Preventive Maintenance	0	×
Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision	×	0

You can use all the functions of A-type and B-type according to the MELFA Smart Plus card pack type (AB-type).

#### 3.1 List of function

## 3.1.1 Functions of A-type

	Function name	Description	Parameter "SMART+1" setting <sup>(*1)</sup>
	I Calibration assistance function (Chapter 4)	<ul> <li>Using the 2D vision sensor, the following calibration functions can be used.</li> <li>(1) Automatic Calibration Calibration of robot and vision sensor can be automated.</li> <li>(2) Workpiece coordinate calibration Correct between the robot coordinates and workpiece coordinates from the vision sensor.</li> <li>(3) Inter-robot relational calibration You can calculate the relationship between multiple robots.</li> </ul>	1
	<ul> <li>Robot mechanism temperature compensation function (Chapter 5)</li> </ul>	Measure the temperature of the robot arm and automatically correct errors due to thermal expansion of the arm.	2
	3 Coordinated control for additional axes (Chapter 6)	<ol> <li>Base coordinate cooperative control Allows synchronized operation where a robot is installed on an additional axis (linear axis) and its speed relative to the workpiece in specified. Supports machining of large workpieces using linear, circular or spline interpolation that exceeds the robot's range of movement.</li> <li>Additional axis tracking Allows synchronized operation where tracking of the robot and workpieces on an additional axis (linear axis) is specified. Linear or circular interpolation while the workpiece is being transported allows operations such as precision sealing workand surface inspections</li> </ol>	3

## Table 3-2 List of functions of A-type

	Function name	Description	Parameter "SMART+1" setting <sup>(*1)</sup>
4	Preventive Maintenance (Refer to the separate instruction manual: BFP-A3625.)	<ol> <li>Maintenance simulation         <ul> <li>In the simulation of an actual device or RT ToolBox3, the timing of parts replacement or maintenance in a repeated specific pattern of movement can be estimated. You can consider maintenance cycle in advance, and test robots to verify they are parts friendly.</li> <li>Consumption degree calculation function Based on the actual robot operation conditions (such as the number of motor revolutions and load conditions), the consumption degree of robot components [%] is calculated, and the timing of maintenance, inspection, and overhaul is displayed and reported. The function brings maintenance efficiency by reporting maintenance timing and setting maintenance priorities, etc.</li> </ul> </li> </ol>	4

(\*1) For MELFA-Smart Plus card pack, this setting is not necessary.

In order to use the above function, the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack must be attached to the robot controller.

## 3.1.2 Functions of B-type

Table 3-3	List of	functions	of	B-type

	Function name	Description	Parameter "SMART+1" setting <sup>(*1)</sup>
1	Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision (Refer to the separate instruction manual: BFP-A3626.)	During the adjustment for the model-less recognition of MELFA-3DVision, our AI and simulation technologies allow to automatically adjust sensor parameters without needing expert knowledge typically required.	101

(\*1) For MELFA-Smart Plus card pack, this setting is not necessary.

In order to use the above function, the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack must be attached to the robot controller.

# 3.2 Installing/removing and setting of the MELFA Smart Plus card

## 3. 2. 1 Installing/removing of the MELFA Smart Plus card

Caution When installing or removing the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack, it is required to keep the card/card pack in parallel with the controller.



## 3.2.1.1. Installing of the MELFA Smart Plus card

Here is the procedure for installing the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack.



## Figure 3-1 Installation of MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack

- 1) Turn off the controller.
- 2) Grasp the interface cover removal lever lightly and pull out the interface cover.
- 3) Hold the handle of the MELFA Smart Plus card and insert it into SLOT 1 or SLOT 2. At this time, please insert so that both ends of the card fit into the slots of the slot (SLOT 1 and SLOT 2 in Figure 3-1).
- 4) Insert the connector firmly until it is firmly locked until the release lever clicks.

Installation of the MELFA Smart Plus card is now complete.

## 3.2.1.2. Removing of the MELFA Smart Plus card

Here is the procedure for removing the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack.



#### Figure 3-2 Removing of MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack

1) Turn off the controller.

2) Remove the MELFA Smart Plus card with the removal lever pushed up. Hold the handle of the MELFA Smart Plus card and pull out the MELFA Smart Plus card in parallel with the controller.

Removing of the MELFA Smart Plus card is now complete.

## 3. 2. 2 Setting of the MELFA Smart Plus card (Only MELFA Smart Plus card)

When using the MELFA Smart Plus card, you can use <u>only one supported function</u>. The setting method of the function to be used is shown below. If you use the MELFA Smart Plus card pack, this setting is not necessary.

- 1) Select [Online] -> [Parameter] -> [Parameter List] from the project tree of RT Toolbox3 and display the parameter list screen.
- 2) Enter the parameter name "SMART+1" on the parameter list screen and display the parameter editing screen.

Parameter Edit				×
Parameter Name :	SMART+1	Robot# : 0		
Explanation :	MELFA Smart Plus			
1.1				
1.1				
		Print	<u>W</u> rite	Close

3) Change the setting value of parameter "SMART+1". Refer to the following table. The error occurs if the robot programming language (commands, system functions, and state variables) other than the set function is used. Refer to Table 3-6 for the details of errors.

Setting value	Available functions	Flashing color of the LED (*1)
0	Cannot use the MELFA Smart Plus function (Factory setting)	Red
1	Calibration assistance function	
2	Robot mechanism temperature compensation function	
3	Coordinated control for additional axes	Green
4	Preventive Maintenance	
101	Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision	

#### Table 3-4 Relationship between the setting value and function

(\*1) The location of the LED is shown in the Table 3-2.

If using the MELFA Smart Plus card pack, the LED flashes blue.



Install only one MELFA Smart Plus card.

If multiple MELFA Smart Plus cards are installed, error (L3782) will occur without flashing the LED. Refer to Table 3–6 for the details of errors.

## 3.3 Robot language specification

This chapter explains the MELFA-BASIC VI robot program language relating to MELFA Smart Plus.

## 3. 3. 1 Robot status variable list

Below is a list of state variables related to the MELFA Smart Plus.

## Table 3-5 Robot status variable list

Variable name	Array designation	Function	Attribute	Data type
M_SmartPlus	1	MELFA Smart Plus Function Enabled Available	R	Integer type
C_SmartPlus	1	MELFA Smart Plus function name	R	Character string type

(\*1) R : Only reading is possible.

R/W : Both reading and writing are possible.

## 3. 3. 2 Detailed explanation of robot (system) state variable

The details of the state variables related to MELFA Smart Plus are shown below.

The way of viewing the contents described in the explanation of the status variable is as follows.

[Function]	: This indicates a function of a variable.
[Format]	: This indicates how to enter arguments of an instruction.
	[] means that arguments may be omitted. System status variables can be used in conditional expressions, as well as in reference and assignment statements. In the format example, only reference and assignment statements are given to make the description simple.
[Terminology]	: This indicates the meaning and range of an argument.
[Reference Program]	: An example program using variables is shown.
[Explanation]	: This indicates detailed functions and precautions.

## M\_SmartPlus

## [Function]

Refer to the available status of each function of MELFA Smart Plus.

## [Format]

<Numeric variable> = M\_SmartPlus(<ID>)

## [Terminology]

<Numeric variable> Specify numerical variable to assign.

- 0: Disabled
- 1 : Enabled

<ID>

- Specify the function ID. 1 : Calibration assistance function
- 2 : Robot mechanism temperature compensation function
- 3 : Coordinated control for additional axes
- 4 : Preventive Maintenance
- 101 : Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision

## [Reference Program]

- 1 M1 = M\_SmartPlus(1)
  - ' Refer to the available state of the calibration assistance function.

## [Explanation]

- (1) Refers to the available status of the MELFA Smart Plus function specified by <ID>.
- (2) It is read-only.

## C\_SmartPlus

## [Function]

Returns the function name of MELFA Smart Plus.

## [Format]

[. e. inen]						
<character string="" variable=""> = C</character>	<character string="" variable=""> = C_SmartPlus(<id>)</id></character>					
[Terminology]						
<character string="" variable=""></character>	Specify the character string variable to assign. Calibration assistance / Robot temperature compensation / Coordinated control for additional axes / Preventive Maintenance / Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision					
<id></id>	Specify the function ID. 1 : Calibration assistance function 2 : Robot mechanism temperature compensation function					

3 : Coordinated control for additional axes

4 : Preventive Maintenance

101 : Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision

## [Reference Program]

1 CMSP\$ = C\_SmartPus(1) ' Get the name of the calibration assistance function.

[Explanation]

- (1) Returns the name of the MELFA Smart Plus function specified by <ID>.
- (2) It is read-only.

# 3.4 Error list



C : Warning ......The operation will continue.

## Table 3-6 MELFA Smart Plus card related error list

Error number	Error cause and measures		
L.3780	Error message	Cannot use the MELFA Smart Plus.	
	Cause	Invalid MELFA Smart Plus.	
	Measures	Check the MELFA Smart Plus card or parameter.	
L.3781	Error message	Cannot use the MELFA Smart Plus.	
	Cause	Invalid MELFA Smart Plus.	
	Measures	Check the MELFA Smart Plus card or parameter.	
	Error message	There're MELFA Smart Plus Cards.	
L.3782	Cause	Multiple MELFA Smart Plus cards are installed.	
	Measures	Turn off controller and pull unnecessary MELFA Smart Plus card.	

# 4. Calibration assistance function

This section explains the calibration assistance function using 2D vision sensor.

In this section we use Cognex's vision for vision sensor, Describe the operation method when setting vision in the EasyBuilder view of Cognex In-Sight Explore.

If you are using another vision sensor, please use the communication part of the sample program output by this function according to the specification of each manufacturer.

## 4.1 Outline

Example for the calibration assistance function is as follows.

Table 4-1 calibration assistance function list

Name	Contents
Automatic calibration	Teach the robot coordinate and image coordinate to calculate the calibration data between the robot and the camera.
Workpiece coordinate calibration	Use the vision sensor to do the calibration of robot coordinate and arbitrary workpiece coordinate.
Inter-robot relational calibration	According to the same workpiece coordinate defined by multiple robots, the positional relationship between the robots can be calculated.



Figure4-1 Calibration assistance function

### (1) System components

System components example is as follows

a) D type robot



Figure 4-2 D type System components example

b) R type/Q type robot



Figure 4-3 System components example of the R type/Q type robot

## 4.2 Automatic Calibration

#### (1)Function Outline

"Automatic calibration" is a function for matching the coordinate in the vision sensor with the coordinate in the robot.

The function is possible to convert the image coordinate (work position, release position, etc.) measured by the vision sensor into robot coordinate.



Figure 4-4 Automatic calibration image

### (2) Standard Specifications

Table 4-2 Standard specifications of the Automatic calibration

Items	Specifications
Robot	Vertical 6-axis robot Horizontal 4-axis robot
	* It can't be used with the vertical 5-axis robot and the user robot.
Language	Only MELFA-BASIC VI
Number of the calibration data that can be registered	8 (VSCALB1 to 8)
Number of correspondence points that can be set for one calibration data	20 pairs
Remarks	Do not pass through the singular point of the robot, Please teach the points of the calibration.
	* Only the robot's XY plane can be used.

## (3) Camera setting method

Corresponding camera setting method by automatic calibration is as follows.

Table 4-3 Corresponding camera setting method by automatic calibration

Name	Camera	Use the calculated calibration data to change the coordinate
Fixed method (Top fixed)	Applicable to the workpiece at the top, the camera faces down.	World coordinate
Fixed method (Bottom fixed)	Applicable object workpiece is below, camera facing up.	World coordinate
Hand eye method	Applicable to the camera attached to the robot hand (under the flange).	Tool coordinate







Fixed method (Top fixed)

Fixed method (Bottom fixed)

Figure 4-5 Camera setting method

Hand eye method

(4) Workflow



### (4-1)Preparation and installation of equipment

In the automatic calibration, the robot recognizes the calibration plate while changing the posture and proceed with work. The calibration plate is a product for customers. Please prepare the plate according to the following contents.

a) Fixed method (Top fixed)



(4-2)Set communication parameters

a) Vision side setting

Start up the In-Sight Explorer, Set the IP address and subnet mask of the vision sensor.

Select [System] - [Add Sensor/Device to Network] from the In-Sight Explorer menu. On the displayed "Add Sensor / Device to Network" screen, Sensors / devices that can be added to the network are displayed. Select the device from the list and set IP address · subnet mask.



b) Robot side setting

Start RT ToolBox 3 and set the parameters.

(1)Set IP address  $\cdot$  Subnet mask.

1) Select <online> - <parameter> - <communication parameter> - <Ethernet> and display the Ethernet parameter screen.

2) Set the IP address and subnet mask of the robot from the IP address menu.

Ethernet 1:RC1 (Simulation)			_ 🗆 X
Menu:	Copy PC Network Settings		
IP Address	IP Address: (NETIP)	10 . 97 . 45	. 129
Device & Line			
Realtime Monitor	Subnet Mask: (NETMSK)	255 . 255 . 255	;.0
Real-time External Command	Default Gateway: (NETGW)	10 . 97 . 18	. 254

2 Set IP address, port number, COM assignment of vision sensor.

1) Select device line menu.

2) Double-click the target device, Display the device parameter setting screen.

- 3) Select "Network vision sensor (2D)" by automatic setting.
- 4) Set IP address · port number · COM assignment.

r ■ Ethernet 1:RC1 (Simulation)		×	
Menu:	Device List:	Device parameter setting	×
IP Address	Dev   Mode   2) dress   Por	Device: 3)	OPT12
Realtime Monitor	OPT12 1: Server 192.168.0.3 10002 OPT12 1: Server 192.168.0.4 10003	Autoconfigration:	Network Vision Sensor (2D) 🔻
Real-time External Command	OPT14 1: Server 192.168.0.5 10004 OPT15 1: Server 192.168.0.6 10005	Mode: 4) MODE(2))	0: Client 👻
	OPT17 1: Server 192.168.0.7 10006 OPT17 1: Server 192.168.0.8 10007 OPT18 1: Server 192.168.0.9 10008	IP Address: (NETHSTIP(2))	192 . 168 . 0 . 3
	OPT19 1: Server 192.168.0.10 10009	Port #: (NETPORT(3))	23
	Set	Protocol: (CPRCE12)	2: Data link 👻
		Packet Type: <mark>4)</mark> ME12)	1: CR+LF *
		Allocation: (COMDEV)	СОМ2
			OK Cancel

③Set the vision trigger timing parameter (parameter name: NVTRGTMG).

- 1) Select < Online> <Parameter> <Parameter List> and display the parameter list screen.
- 2) Enter the parameter name "NVTRGTMG" and display the parameter editing screen.
- 3) Set the value of NVTRGTMG to "1".



## (4-3) Set robot data

Set calibration data from the automatic calibration screen of RT ToolBox 3.

① Launch the automatic calibration screen

Start RT ToolBox 3, select <Tool> - <Automatic Calibration>, Display the automatic calibration screen. <Automatic Calibration> is not displayed when offline.

Image: Image	RT ToolBox3 - Automatic Calibration Help	×
New Open Save Close Delete Workspace	* © Update it it offline Online Simulator Node Pint Pint Pint Pint Pint Pint Pint Pint Pint	
Workspace I X 🙆 Autom	atic Calibration ×	Properties 🛛 🕹 🕹
∠ ■ RT3AutomaticCalibration 3D Monitor		
⊿ 🔽 RC1	Automatic Calibration – O ×	
Image: Second		
RV-7FRC-R	Calibration Laboration Vision Maker Cognex	
Deration Panel	Camera Position Fixed Method(Top Fixed) * COM Port COM2 *	
15 Spine	Technett Technett Marker Tool [mm] 0,000 0,000	
Parameter     Monitor		
D 😵 Maintenance		
Board	Kesolution [pxel]	
a 🐝 Tool	Initialized Points [mm] 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000 0.000	
Oscilograph DXF File Import		
User Definition Screen	Leaching Points Generating Teaching Points Get the Kobot Position	
File Manager     Dision Calibration	Enable No. X [mm] Y [mm]	
Automatic Calibration		
Force Sensor Calibration		
Tool Automatic Calculation	4 0.000 0.000	
MELFA-3D Vision     I/O Simulator	5 0.000 0.000	
	□ 3 0.000 0.000	
	9 0.000 0.000	
	10 0.000 0.000	
	14 0.000 0.000	
	15 0.000 0.000	
	19 0.000 0.000 Robot Program <u>Name</u> :	
	20 0.000 0.000	
	Save to File Read from File Explain Generation a Robot Program	
Output		Ф.Х.
Ready	I	
Reduy		anne node - Toka Indar Soke - 15

#### ② Set the initial data

The Auto Calibration screen is set as follows.

Calibration	Select the the calibration number.
Calibration1 -	<ul> <li>Selection range: Calibration1 to Calibration8</li> </ul>
Camera Position	Select camera setting method.Click the [Camera
Fixed Method(Top Fixed) ~	Position] button to display the schematic diagram of the setting method.
	<ul> <li>Selection:Fixed Method(Top Fixed)/ Fixed Method</li> </ul>
	(Bottom Fixed)/ Hand-eye Method
Vision Maker	Select maker of vision sensor.
Cognex *	Selection:Only Cognex
COM Port	Select COM port number.
COM2 *	Selection range: COM2 to COM8
Tool No#	Select the tool parameter number. (*1)
Tool1 ·	Selection range: Tool1 to Tool16
Marker Tool [mm]	Set approximate value of marker tool length. (*2)
X Y	•Fixed Method: Tool coordinates from the flange center
0.000 0.000	to the mark position.
	·Hand-eye Method: Tool coordinates from the center of
	the flange to the camera center.

Vision Range [mm]	Set the vision range of the vision sensor. (*3)	
Х Ү	Please set the viewing range (X, Y) based on the base	
0.000 0.000	coordinates.	
Resolution [pixel]	Set the resolution of the vision sensor.	
X Y	Please check the specification of the vision sensor to be	
0.000 0.000	used.	

(\*1) In the process of calibration operation, calculate the following tool coordinates. Specify the storage location of the tool coordinates at that time.



(\*2) Please enter the length of the marker tool so that the calibration plate will not come out of the vision sensor's field of view.

For the marker tool, please input the value in the mechanical interface coordinate.

The mechanical interface coordinate can be checked by 3D monitor in the RT ToolBox 3.

To display the mechanical interface coordinate, please select [Properties] -> [Robot Model] in 3D monitor and set "Display tool coordinate system" and "Display tool position" as shown below.

E Robot	Model		
Displa	y robot model	True	
View t	type	Solid	
Displa	y solenoid valve	False	
Interfe	erence check	True	7
Displa	y tool coordinate system	True	
Displa	y tool position	False	



(\*3) An example of setting the Vision Range is shown.

In the case of the following figure, the Vision Range (x, y) is set to (30, 40).



- ③ The initial point of teaching
  - 1) Start In-Sight Explorer, set the application step as [Set Up Image], select [Live Video], The camera image is displayed in the monitor.

🕄 In-Sight Explorer - admin - (I	/EIW0534 - Standard - EasyBuilder View]		
<u>File E</u> dit <u>V</u> iew I <u>m</u> age <u>S</u> ens	or System <u>Wi</u> ndow <u>H</u> elp		- 5 ×
	<u>со 🖄 е какки каки е 🖄 о с</u>	ा २, २, २, २, 🙎 🔜 🖂 :	2 O 4 2 0 .
Application Steps	PC Sensor	No Size Available Offine	Palette Help Basults 1/0 TestRum <sup>m</sup> Units  Get Name Recul
	- Edit Acquisition Settings	- Calibrate Image to Real World Units	
Trigger Live Video Load Images from PC	Trigger Delay Insed Trigger Delay Insed Trigger Delay Insed Camera Trigger Delay Insed Camera Ca	Calibration Type: Classic C	Vientation X•

Figure 4-6 In-Sight Explorer Live video

2) Move the recognition mark by the robot's jog operation so that it is near the center of the camera field of view.

At this time, the distance from the recognition mark to the camera should match the distance between the work surface and the camera when recognizing the actual work.

(At this time, please adjust the focus and aperture of the camera. When the camera's focus / aperture is not adjusted, calibration may not be performed accurately.)



Figure 4-7 Movement of recognition mark to center position

(It shows the fixed type (Top fixed) case, Please operate fixed method (Bottom fixed) / hand-eye method equally)

## 3) Teach the initial point on the automatic calibration screen of RT Toolbox 3.

Teaching the initialized point	Click the [Get the Robot Position] button, the initialized
Get the Robot Position	point is taught and the taught coordinate values are displayed.

#### ④ Teaching points setting Set the automatic calibration

Set the	e au	lomatio	calibi	allon.	
Teac	hing	points	5		Set the teaching points of the calibration.
Teach	ing Poi	nts <mark>1</mark> )	Gene	rating Teaching Points	Enter the offset from the initial point and specify each
Enable	No.	X [mm]	Y [	[mm]	1) By dicking the [Concreting Teaching Deinte] butter
	1		0.000	0.000	T) By clicking the [Generating reaching Points] button,
	2		0.000	0.000	offset values of teaching points No. 1 to No. 5 are
	3		0.000	0.000	automatically generated based on the input field of view
	4		0.000	0.000	range.
	5		0.000	0.000	<ol> <li>If you want to change the teaching point and increase / decrease the score, manually enter the values of X and Y in the list.</li> </ol>
					Please set the number of teaching points of 4 points or more. Teach points with valid checks will be used for calibration.

(4-4) create a vision job Set vision job from In-Sight Explorer.

(1)English	symbolic	tag	setting
<u> </u>			

Carry out work for using English symbolic tags.	
sionSensor - is_ez140 - EasyBuilder View] r System Window Help	Select [System] - [Options] from the In-Sight Explorer menu.
😽 Log On/Off	
Create <u>R</u> eport	
🛃 Backup	
Restore	
Restore <u>F</u> rom	
Clone To	
Update Firmware	
Mdd Sensor/Device To Network	
Explorer <u>H</u> ost Table	
Re <u>m</u> ote Subnets	
Save View Layout Shift+F7	
Options	
	Select [User Interface] from [Ontions]
	Check the check box "Use English
Emulation Language: English	Symbolic Tags for EasyBuilder" and click
File Utilities Image Display	the [OK] button.
Job View  Large Toolbar (cons  Large Toolbar (cons	
User Interface Large Tree Icons	
Restore DefaultsOK <u>C</u> ancel Apply	








### (4-5) Operation execution

Generate the robot calibration program and run it.

- ① Make sure there are no interfering objects within the range of motion of the robot.
- ② Bring the vision sensor online.
- ③ Push the [ENABLE] switch of T/B and disable T/B. Set the controller mode to "AUTOMATIC".



④ Open the automatic calibration screen of RT ToolBox 3.

	atic Ca											
		_							_			
Calibra	tion	Ca	alibratio	n2		-	Vision Make	r	Cogr	nex	-	
Camer	a Posit	tion Fb	ked Me	thod(Top	Fixed)	-	COM Port		СОМ	2	÷	1
_							_			x	Y	
	lo#	Т	ool2			-	Marker Too	l [mm]		0.000	0.000	
							Vision Rang	e[mm]	ſ	260,000	350.000	1
										640	400	1
				~			Resolution	pixelj		040	480	J
			_	x		r	2	A		В	C	1
Initializ	ed Poi	nts [mm]		322.340		50.770	237.020		-180	0.000	179.990	J
<u>T</u> eachi	ing Poi	ints	Ge	nerating	Teachir	ng Points				Get the Ro	bot <u>P</u> osition	]
Enable	No.	X [mm]		Y [mm]								
M	1		0.000		0.000							
M	2		78.000		0.000							
M	3		-78.000		0.000							
R	4		0.000	10	050.000							
R	5		0.000	-	105.000							
	6		0.000		0.000							
	7		0.000		0.000							
	8		0.000		0.000							
	9		0.000		0.000							
	10		0.000		0.000							
	11		0.000		0.000							
	12		0.000		0.000							
	13		0.000		0.000							
	14		0.000		0.000							
	15		0.000		0.000							
	16		0.000		0.000							
	17		0.000		0.000					_		
	18		0.000		0.000				(	<mark>5)</mark>		
	19		0.000		0.000				R	obot Program	Name:	
	20		0.000		0.000				C	alibration		
	S <u>a</u> ve	to File		Read f	rom <u>F</u> ile	•	Exp	lain	ิด	Generating a R	Ro <u>b</u> ot Program	

- (5) Please enter the name in the [Robot Program Name].
- 6 Click the [Generate a Robot Program] button, the program is automatically saved in the robot controller. When saving of the program is completed, O / P starts up.



- $\bigcirc$  Select override. The default setting is 5%.
- %Please drop the robot speed as much as possible in order to avoid the influence of vibration etc. (Override 10% or less)
- 8 Press [Start] button to start operation.
- (9) When the operation ends normally, the stop button lights up. The calculation result of the calibration is stored in the parameter VSCALB*n*. The *n* is the specified calibration number.

The operation of the robot in automatic calibration is shown below.

- 1) The robot's hand moves to the initialized point.
- 2) To calculate the camera angle and scale, the robot's hand moves from the initialized point by the value set at the second teaching point and the third teaching point.
- 3) In order to calculate the marker tool, the robot's hand rotates around the marker in +C axis drection on the tool coordinate in order of 0, 5, 20, 45, 90 degree.
  - Note) If there is a possibility of interference with the surroundings, change the angle of the C component of the position variables PAngle (1) to PAngle (5) in the robot program.
- 4) To calculate the calibration data, the robot's hand moves to teaching points.



• When changing the generated robot program and re-executing the robot program, close the O/P and open the O/P again before executing.

When deleting the generated robot program, please confirm that the Automatic Calibration screen is closed before deleting the robot program. If the Automatic Calibration screen is not closed, you may get an error saying "The program is being edited", "Cannot delete designated files".

No.	Cause of and countermeasure		
9100	Error	Can not get the recognition result of the vision sensor.	
	Cause	There is a possibility that the vision sensor has failed to	
		recognize.	
	Countermeasure	a) When the object to be recognized is outside the field of view	
		of the camera	
		① Please change the XY component of the position	
		variables POFS (2), POFS (3) in the program to a	
		value located within the field of view of the camera.	
		POFS (2) and POFS (3) mean the teaching points	
		No. 2 and No. 3, respectively.	
		(2) Change the angle of the C component of the	
		position variables PAngle (1) to PAngle (5) in the	
		program to a value located within the field of view of	
		the camera. PAngle (1) to PAngle (5) are used to	
		b) When the abject to be recognized is leasted within the field of	
		b) when the object to be recognized is located within the field of	
		To be able to recognize the target correctly. Adjust the	
		recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor	
9101 to 9120	Error	At the Nth teaching point, the recognition result of the vision	
		sensor could not be acquired.	
		Please judge the teach point number N with the error number	
		lower two digits.	
	Cause	There is a possibility that the vision sensor has failed to	
		recognize.	
	Countermeasure	a) When the object to be recognized is outside the field of view	
		of the camera	
		Change the XY component of the position variable POFS	
		(N) in the program to a value located within the field of view	
		of the camera.	
		b) When the object to be recognized is located within the field	
		ofview of the camera	

#### Table 4-4 Automatic calibration's trouble shooting

		To be able to recognize the target correctly, Adjust the
0.1.50		recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.
9152	Error	Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the
	0	recognition target to the image center (within the default value).
	Cause	strict.
	Countermeasure	a) Changing the number of retries
		Please change the description line 126 of the program. The
		initial value retry count is set to 10.
		If MRTRY> <u>10</u> Then
		b) Change termination condition
		Please change the description line 123 of the program. The
		initial value is set to 2. MSCale stores the distance value [mm]
		per pixel.
		II MDH<=(MSCale $\underline{Z}$ ) Then
		If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the
		vision sensor, please change it to a large value.
9153	Error	Can not calculate the tool length.
	Cause	The auxiliary point used to calculate the tool length may be
		incorrectly set. Please check the value of numerical variable
		MErr in the program.
		a) When MErr = $-1$
		I ne auxiliary point is less than 3. b) When $MErr = 2$
		It is not possible to calculate the tool length from the specified
		auxiliary point
		c) When MErr = $-3$
		Estimated error of calculated tool data is 100 mm or more.
	Countermeasure	a) When MErr = -1
		To calculate the tool length, at least three points of auxiliary
		points are required. Please set at least 3 auxiliary points.
		b)When MErr = -2
		There may be multiple same auxiliary points set up. Please
		set the auxiliary point again.
		C When MET = -3 Please set the auxiliary point again
9154	Error	Can not calculate calibration data.
	Cause	Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the
		value of MErr in the program.
		a) When MErr = -1
		The auxiliary point is less than 4.
		b) When MErr = -2
		It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set
	Countormogouro	corresponding points.
	Countermeasure	To calculate the calibration data at least $4$ pairs of
		corresponding points are required Please set up more than 4
		pairs of corresponding points.
		b) When MErr = $-2$
		There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set
		exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding
		points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.
9155	Error	The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default
	Cause	The estimation error of the calibration data avagade the default
	Cause	
	Countermeasure	Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical
		variable MScore in the program.
		If the estimation error is large, check Table 4-5 on the
		contirmation items at the time of execution, Please re-execute
		the calibration.

No.	Check item	Solution
1	Whether the corresponding point is set	Please correctly set corresponding points.
	correctly.	
	For example, Whether the order of the	
l	argument of the instruction that sets the	
	corresponding point is wrong. The calibration	
	number is incorrect.	
2	Whether OVRD speed is too high.	Please set the OVRD speed to 10% or less.
3	Whether there is interference light.	Please block it if there is interference light.
4	Whether lens distortion does not occur in	Perform lens distortion correction.
	recognition image.	Please use lens that lens distortion is unlikely to
		occur.
5	During calibration execution, Whether the	Do not change the height between the vision
	heights of the vision sensor and the robot	sensor and the mark for robot calibration.
	calibration marks changed.	
6	Whether the mark for robot calibration is	Please change the position to a non-specular
	specularly reflected and does not shine.	reflection.
7	Whether the vision sensor (optical axis of the	Set the vision sensor (optical axis of the lens) is
	lens) is perpendicular to the operation range	perpendicular to the operating range (calibration
	(calibration range).	range).
8	Whether the origin setting of the robot is	Please reset the origin of the robot.
	correctly set.	

Table 4-5 Items to check during automatic calibration

(4-6) saving / reading the setting data of the automatic calibration

1 Save method

Click the [Save to file] button, the automatic calibration data is saved in the form of a file. The extension is ".acin".

2 Reading method

Click the [Read from file] button, select an automatic calibration data file saved on the computer, you can read the data.

Please note that the calibration setting being edited will be cleared.

# 4.3 Workpiece coordinate calibration

### (1) Function Outline

Automatically obtain the positional relationship between robot coordinate and workpiece coordinate by program execution and store coordinate values in work coordinate parameters (WK1CORD to WK8CORD). For this function, it is a prerequisite to use the vision sensor as a hand eye.



Figure 4-8 Image of work coordinate calibration

### (2) Standard Specifications

Table 4-6 Standard specifications of the workpiece coordinate calibration

Items	Specifications
Robot	Vertical 6-axis robot
	* It can't be used with the vertical 5-axis robot, the horizontal 4-axis robot and the user robot.
Language	Only MELFA-BASIC VI
Setting method of vision sensor	Hand eye method
Output information	Position and posture of the workpiece coordinate
Number of the workpiece coordinate that can be registered	8 (WK1CORD to WK8CORD)

#### (3) Equipment preparation

Prepare the following calibration sheet.

Set the position of each marker in work coordinates in advance.

Determine the X axis and Y axis of work coordinates with the center origin mark, the coordinate value of the cross mark is judged from the relative position.

\* Please make sure that the arrangement (dimensions) of the marks is reflected in the vision field of view.



Calibration sheet to be prepared

Figure 4-9 Example of the calibration sheet

### (4) Workflow



(4-1) Setting of the vision sensor



### (4-2) Setting of calibration sheet The calibration sheet is fixed to the surface on which workpiece coordinates are to be defined.



Please fix the calibration sheet to the surface on which workpiece coordinates are to be defined.

(4-3) Teach base position of robot

Move the robot so that the target tool is near the center of the camera field of view, teach the position of the robot.

① In-Sight Explorer application step as [Set Up Image] and select [Live Video], the camera image is displayed in the monitor.



② By robot's jog operation, make sure the calibration sheet is near the center of the camera field of view, and move the robot so that it reflects as much as possible within the field of view. (At this time, please adjust the focus and aperture of the camera. When the camera's focus /

(At this time, please adjust the focus and aperture of the camera. When the camera's focus / aperture is not adjusted, Calibration may not be performed accurately.)



### ③ Teach present position

Open the robot program "WRKCALB.prg" with T / B or RT Toolbox 3 and teach the current position of robot to the position variable "P0". The robot program "WRKCALB.prg" is in the CD-ROM.



### (4-4) Set condition data of robot

Open sample program "WRKCALB.prg" with T/B or RT ToolBox 3, please change condition data as necessary.

The condition data can be changed by setting the position variable / program change.

The position variable and program description are as follows.

Variable name	Elements	Contents	Initial value
PVSize	Х	Vision resolution (Pixel value in X direction)[pixel]	(+640, +480, 0, 0, 0, 0,
	Y	Vision resolution (Pixel value in X direction)[pixel]	0)
PGoal	A	Final vision sensor posture(A,B,C)[deg] (Note 1)	(0, 0, 0, +180, +0,
	В	(Please set the posture of the vision sensor in	-90)
	С	workpiece coordinate.)	
PCamTL	Z	Approximate distance from flange center to calibration sheet [mm]	(0, 0, +200, 0, 0, 0)
PW(1)	Х	Elements in work coordinate No.1 (Note 2)	(+10, +10, 0, 0, 0, 0)
	Y		
PW(2)	Х	Elements in work coordinates (Note 2)	(+10, -10, 0, 0, 0, 0)
	Y		
PW(3)	Х	Elements in work coordinates (Note 2)	(-10, +10, 0, 0, 0, 0)
	Y		
PW(4)	X	Elements in work coordinates (Note 2)	(- <mark>10</mark> , - <mark>10</mark> , 0, 0, 0, 0)
	Y		
PAng	A	The movement amount at the time of calculating	(0, 0, 0, <mark>+5</mark> , <mark>0</mark> , 0)
	В	the work coordinate origin (X, Y, Z) (Note 3)	
POFS(1)	X	Camera angle, amount of movement during scale	(+10, +0, 0, 0, 0, 0)
	Y	calculation (Note 2)	
POFS(2)	Х	Camera angle, amount of movement during scale	(-10, +0, 0, 0, 0, 0)
	Y	calculation (Note 2)	

### (1) Position variable

### 2 Program

Contents	Sample program
Ethernet COM No. (Note 4)	21 CCOM\$="COM2:" ' Line number setting to open line
Vision job name	22 CPRG\$="WRKCALB.job" 'Set vision job name
HandEye Calibration No.	23 MHndENo = 1 'Hand Eye Calibration number
With handeye calibration Set tool No.	24 MTLCalNo = 1 'Tool No.(Distance from flange to camera center)
CalibrationNo. of image coordinates and work coordinates	25 MCalNo = 2 'Calibration Nol.(Image coordinates⇒work coordinates)
Work coordinate No.	26 MWrkNo = 1 'Work coordinate No. of registration destination
Distance from the lens to the calibration sheet [mm] (Note 1)	27 MFIng = 120 ' Focal length [mm]
Gain value	28 MGain = 1.0 'Gain value of feedback control
Tolerance of calibration data [mm]	67 If MScore > 0.05 Then
Vision sensor No.	99 If M_NvOpen(1) = 1 Then
(Note 4)	101 Wait M_NvOpen(1)<>1
	104 NVOpen CCOM\$ As #1 Line open + log on
	105 Wait M_NvOpen(1)=1 'Waiting logon to vision sensor
	106 NVLoad #1,CPRG\$ 'Load vision program
	111     NVRun #1,CPRG\$     'Vision start
	112 EBRead #1,,MRes,PVS,MNUM,PV(1),PV(2),PV(3),PV(4) ' Acquisition of recognition result
Move the work	196 If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then ' within the specified value (± 1 pixel)
image center	

Tolerance [mm] (Note 5)			
Parallel the vision sensor with the XY plane of work coordinates Tolerance [deg] (Note 4)	256	If MDH<=1.0 Then	' within the specified value (1 degree)

(Note 1) Please set PGoal, PCamTL, MFIng referring to the figure below.



(Note 2) Elements of work coordinates on the calibration sheet, please refer to as follows.



- (Note 3) Mark at the center of camera view, do not leave the field of view after moving. However, to improve accuracy, please set the value to move as far as possible to the edge of the camera field of view.
- (Note 4) Another vision sensor (Including 3D vision sensor) is connected or using the Open command, Please do not duplicate numbers.
- (Note 5) Tolerance after movement (initial value: MSCale\*2mm).
   Vision recognition mark after moving, the correction operation is repeated until it falls within this error.
   If convergence does not occur even after 10 retries, error 9152 will be generated.

(4-5) create a vision job Set vision job from In-Sight Explore.

①English symbolic tag setting

	rry out work for using English symbolic tags. ensor - is_ez140 - EasyBuilder View]	Select [System] - [Options] from the
r Sy	stem <u>W</u> indow <u>H</u> elp	In-Sight Explorer menu.
	Log On/Off	
=	Create <u>R</u> eport	
<b>5</b>	Backup	
	Restore	
	Restore <u>F</u> rom	
	<u>C</u> lone To	
	Update Firmware	
6	Add Sensor/Device To <u>N</u> etwork	
	Explorer <u>H</u> ost Table	
J	Re <u>m</u> ote Subnets	
-	Save View Layout Shift+F7	
	Options	
Ch	eck "Use English symbolic tags with EasyBuilder".	
🕀 Op	tions ×	Select [User Interface] from [Options],
Acc	ess Management User Interface	Check "Use English Symbolic Tags for
Em	ulation Language: English	EasyBuilder", Click the [OK] button.
File	i Utilities Ige Display	
Jot	View	
Rei	Large Toolbar Icons	
US	r incenace	
	·,	
Re	OK Cancel Apply	













### (4-6) Operation execution

Select the robot's calibration program and run it.

- ① Make sure there are no interfering objects.
- ② Online the vision sensor.
- ③ Push the [ENABLE] switch of T/B and disable T/B. Set the controller mode to "AUTOMATIC".



- ④ Select Override in T/B.
  - \* In order to avoid the influence of vibrations etc and to make operation even a little accurate, Please drop the robot speed. (Override 10% or less)
- 5 Select the calibration program (program: WRKCALB.prg) at T/B.
- 6 Start the program at T/B.

NIa

⑦ Operation ends normally and the program stops with the Hlt instruction on the end line.



The operation of the robot in the workpiece coordinate calibration is shown below.

- 1) The robot's hand moves to the initialized point.
- 2) To calculate the camera angle and scale, the robot's hand moves from the initialized point by the value set at the position variables POFS(1) and POFS(2).
- 3) The robot's hand moves so that the calibration sheet and the vision sensor are parallel. The parallel pose of the vision sensor is the position variable PGoal.
  - The PGoal means the pose of the vision sensor in workpiece coordinate.
- 4) In order to calculate the position of the workpiece coordinate origin, the robot's hand moves by the set position variables PAng.

INU.		Cause and countermeasure
9101	Error	Can not get the recognition result of the vision sensor.
		(Recognition target : Origin mark of workpiece coordinates)
	Cause	There is a possibility that the vision sensor has failed to recognize.
	Countermeasure	a) When the object to be recognized is outside the field of view of
		the camera
		Please change the XY component of the position variables
		POFS (1), POFS (2) in the program to a value located within the
		field of view of the camera.
		b) When the object to be recognized is located within the field
		ofview of the camera
		To be able to recognize the target correctly, Adjust the
		recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.
9102	Error	Can not get the recognition result of the vision sensor.
		(Recognition target : Teaching mark of workpiece coordinates)
	Cause	The vision sensor may not recognize the four teach points.
	Countermeasure	a) When the object to be recognized is outside the field of view of
		the camera
		1 Make sure that the Z component of the position variable
		PCamTL in the program is correctly entered.
		② Please check whether the XY component of the position
		variable PCamTL in the program is correctly entered.
		When the value is incorrect. Please perform hand eve

Table 4-7 Troubleshooting workpiece coordinate calibration

9130         Error         With the default retry count, the default value is sensor could not be moved in parameters act. of the vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, the vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries.           Didage change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MDH<=1 0 Then           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the coordinates.           Cause         Less change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value eretry count is set to 1.0.           1452         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Less number of retrise.         Or the prog	9130         Error         Within the dejact to be recognized is located within the field of view of the camera           9130         Error         Within the dejact to be recognized is located within the field of view of the camera           9130         Error         Within the default trave court. The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Outing the number of retries are retries.         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The linitial value is sent to 10(feg). If MDH<=-1.0 Then           Please change the point (intersection) of the two position data.         Countermeasure           9131         Error         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9131         Error         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The linitial value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           9152         Error         Within the default retry count. It was not possible to mo		1			
9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be moved in pratilel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workplece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries.         Prete terror           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries         Prease change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg).           If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Prease change it to a large value.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workplece coordinate origin.           9132         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workplece coordinate origin.           9134         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workplece coordinate origin.           9135         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image conter (within the default value).           9154         Error         Within the default value is set to 1.0. <td< td=""><td>9130         Error         When the object to be recognized is located within the field of view of the camera           9130         Error         Within the default retry court. The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry court. The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           9130         Error         Planes change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value entry court is set to 10. If MRTX&gt;10 Then           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           0         Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Counterreasure         Please schange the description line 123 of the program. The initial value est to 10. If MRTX&gt;10 Plane           9152         Error         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Counterreasure         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value est to 10. If MRTX&gt;10 Plane           9154         Error</td><td></td><td></td><td>calibration again.</td></td<>	9130         Error         When the object to be recognized is located within the field of view of the camera           9130         Error         Within the default retry court. The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry court. The vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           9130         Error         Planes change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value entry court is set to 10. If MRTX>10 Then           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           0         Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Counterreasure         Please schange the description line 123 of the program. The initial value est to 10. If MRTX>10 Plane           9152         Error         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Counterreasure         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value est to 10. If MRTX>10 Plane           9154         Error			calibration again.		
9130         Error         Within the default retry count, the resolution excompliant of the vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workplece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           9) Changing the number of retries         b) Change termination condition           9) Change termination condition         may be strict.           10) Change termination condition         may be strict.           1111         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value its set to 1.0(deg).           111         If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition targe to the function may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries.         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm) per pusel.	9130       Error       Within the object to be recognized is located within the field of view of the camera To be able to be recognized is located within the field of workpice coordinates.         9130       Error       Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpice coordinates.         Cause       Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.         3) Changing the number of retries       a) Change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-100 This set to 10. If MRTRY-100 Then         9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinates orgin. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MOH<-1.0 Then			Now, The XY component means the tool length from the		
9) When the object to be recognized is located within the field of view of the camera           9130         Error         Within the default retry count. The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of own/piece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         A Changing the number of retries.           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 1.0(deg).           If MOH<-1.0 Then	9) When the object to be recognized is located within the field of view of the camera           70 be able to recognize the target correctly. Adjust the recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Change termination condition           a) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg).           111         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           121         Error         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           121         Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           121         Error         Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to the image centre (within the default value).           1252         Error         Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to 10.           1254         Error         Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the regording the advection condition           1252         Error         Within the default value is smail due to the resolution etc. of the			flange to the center of the camera.		
view of the camera To be able to recognize the target correctly, Adjust the recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count. The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-910 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0[deg]. If MDH<<1.0 Then	View of the camera To be able to recognize the target correctly, Adjust the recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, the vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-30 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg]. If MDH<=1.0 Then			b) When the object to be recognized is located within the field of		
9130         To be able to recognize the target correctly, Adjust the recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor. Adjust the moved in parallel (within the default retry count. The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         Abanging the number of retries           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MDR-s-1.0 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg).           If MDR-s-1.0 Then           If MDR-s-1.0 Then           If MDR-second the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure           Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries.           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value is set to 2.Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm) per pixel.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries.	To be able to recognize the target correctly, Adjust the recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries. Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition           b) Change termination condition ret. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.           9131         Error           Cause         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to 10.           Cause         Cause or the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to 10.           Cause         Can not calculate the coordinate origin.           Cause         Oraging the number of retries.           Cause         Or retry count, it was not possible to no anot aclculate the readivition may be strict.			view of the camera		
9130         Error         recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor. could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workplece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries.         The termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries         259 of the program. The initial value is set to 10. If MRTRY-V10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 23 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MRTRY-V10 Then           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workplece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please se up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries.         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm) per pixel.           If MRTRY-V10 Then         Delese ch	9130         recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.           9130         Error         Within the default retry count, the vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workplece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-3D Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is strol 1.0(deg). If MDH<=1.0 Then			To be able to recognize the target correctly, Adjust the		
9130         Error         Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         Abanging the number of retries           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 1.0[deg].           If MDH<	9130       Error       Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value restry count is set to 10.0. If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MDH<=1.0 Then			recognition parameters etc. of the vision sensor.		
moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MDH<=1.0 Then	moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-30 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MDRV=1.0 Then           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data. Countermeasure           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries. Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           9152         Error         Within the default retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 193 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then	9130	Error	Within the default retry count, The vision sensor could not be		
workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0[deg].           If MDH-e-1.0 Then           B         the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Lohanging the number of retries         Or Change termination condition           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, its vas not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Lohanging the number of retries         Or Change termination condition           P	end         workpiece coordinates.           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries.           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg).           If MDH<=1.0 Then			moved in parallel (within the default value) to the XY plane of		
Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MDH<=1.0 Then	Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg].           11f MDH<			workpiece coordinates.		
Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0[deg]. If MDH<=1.0 Then	Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRX-10 Then           b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg). If MDH<=1.0 Then		Cause	Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.		
9152       Error       Cause       Can not calculate the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 10 (ldeg). If MDH<=1.0 Then	91ease       Change the description line 259 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY-10 Then       D) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0(deg).       If MDH<		Countermeasure	a) Changing the number of retries		
9152       Error       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         9152       Error       Can not calculate the condition of the two position data.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         9152       Error       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         0       Countermeasure       Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9131       First Processite         9131       Error       Can not calculate the point (intersection), Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is sent 0.10(deg). If MDH<=1.0 Then			Please change the description line 259 of the program. The		
9154         Error         Within the default value is set to 2.0[deg]. If MCH<21.0 Then	9154         Error         Cause         Cause change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0[deg]. If MDH<=1.0 Then			initial value retry count is set to 10.		
9154       Error       Cause       Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then       NChange termination condition       Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm) per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	MDH< <td>Cause       Corresponding points       Corresponding points       Cause       Corresponding points       Cause       Coresponding points       Cause       Correspondin</td> <td>9154       Error       Canse change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0[deg]. If MDH&lt;=1.0 Then</td> 9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin. Cause       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         0       Cause       Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.         0       Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then       b) Change termination condition         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value (mIp per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	Cause       Corresponding points       Corresponding points       Cause       Corresponding points       Cause       Coresponding points       Cause       Correspondin	9154       Error       Canse change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0[deg]. If MDH<=1.0 Then			If MRTRY>10 Then
9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         0131       Error       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         02004       Countermeasure       Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries.       Of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY-10 Then       b) Change termination condition       Please change the description line 193 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9131         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 1.0[deg]. If MDHx=1.0 Then           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data. Countermeasure           9152         Error         Within the default retry count. It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDHx=(MSCale*2) Then           9154         Error         Can not calculate the calibration data.           Countermeasure         If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.           9154         Error         Can not calculate the calibration data.           Countermeasure         Nehm MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.           b) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2           It is not possible to calculate calibration data stores ponding points are req			b) Change termination condition		
9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         9131       Error       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         Countermeasure       Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value isset to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9131       First MDH<			Please change the description line 123 of the program. The		
If MDH<=1.0 Then	If MDH<=1.0 Then         or           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MDH<>10.           If MDH<			initial value is set to 1.0[deg].		
9131         If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries.           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTX>10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.           If MDH<	If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data. Countermeasure           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries. Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<<(MSCale*2) Then			If MDH<=1.0 Then		
9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         2011       Cause       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         Countermeasure       Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         If MDH<	9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         9131       Error       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         Countermeasure       Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries.         Delase change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.       If MTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition       Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm) per pixel.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.					
9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.             If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm) per pixel.             If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           9131         Error         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data. Countermeasure           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is ster to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.           If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then			If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision		
9131       Error       Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.         Cause       Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.         Countermeasure       Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).         9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.       b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exis or	9131         Error         Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate origin.           Gause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries.           Vitinin the default retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.           9154         Error         Can not calculate the calibration data.           Cause         Car not calculate the calibration data.           Cause         Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value (MSCale*2) Then           If the default value is sen to a large value.         Car not calculate the calibration data.           Cause         Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.           a) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.           b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.           Countermeasure         a) Wh			sensor, please change it to a large value.		
Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           2011         Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.           If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           20152         Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please schange the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.           9154         Error         Can not calculate the calibration data.           Cause         Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program. a) When MErr = -1           The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -1           The auxiliary points.         Countermeasure           a) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.           Countermeasure         a) When MErr = -2           It is not possible to calculate the calibration data from the set corresponding points.           Countermeasure         a	9131	Error	Can not calculate the coordinates of the workpiece coordinate		
Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           9152         Error         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.           If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.           If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	Cause         Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.           Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.           If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.           9154         Error         Can not calculate the calibration data.           Cause         Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr = -1           The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -1           The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2           It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2           There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exist on the same straight line.         Pl			origin.		
Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Obanging the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY <u>10</u> Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	Countermeasure         Please set up two position data that can calculate the point (intersection).           9152         Error         Within the default retry count, it was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries. Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then           9154         Error         Can not calculate the calibration data.           Cause         Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program. a) When MErr = -1 The auxiliary point is less than 4. b) When MErr = -1 To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points. b) When MErr = -2 There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.           9155         Error         The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.		Cause	Can not calculate the point (intersection) of the two position data.		
9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.       If MRTRY-10 Then         b) Change termination condition       Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisonally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm] per pixel.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding point is less than 4.       b) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.       b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point	9152         Error         Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).           Quest         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then           9154         Error         Can not calculate the calibration data.           Cause         Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program. a) When MErr = -1 The auxiliary point is less than 4. b) When MErr = -2 It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.           Countermeasure         a) When MErr = -2 It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points. b) When MErr = -2 It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points. b) When MErr = -2 There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.           9155         Error         The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.           Countermeasure         The estimation error of the calibration data is stored in numerical value.		Countermeasure	Please set up two position data that can calculate the point		
9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value).         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       Ohanging the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10.         If MRTRY-10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9152       Error       Within the default retry count, It was not possible to move the recognition target to the image center (within the default value), cause         Cause       Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.         Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then			(intersection).		
Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	Provide         Provide           Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries           Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition           Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9152	Error	Within the default retry count. It was not possible to move the		
Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	Cause         Less number of retries, Or the termination condition may be strict.           Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then           b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then			recognition target to the image center (within the default value).		
Countermeasure       a) Changing the number of retries         Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	Countermeasure         a) Changing the number of retries Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MTRY>10 Then           b) Change termination condition Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value (mm) per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then		Cause	Less number of retries. Or the termination condition may be strict.		
9154       Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY-10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9154       Please change the description line 199 of the program. The initial value retry count is set to 10. If MRTRY>10 Then         b) Change termination condition       Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [rm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then		Countermeasure	a) Changing the number of retries		
9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.       b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -2         The auxiliary points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         Distance       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         Distance       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         Distance       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points are straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	9154       Firror       Can not calculate the calibration data         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data         Cause       Oversponding points       Not possible to calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         0       When MErr = -1       The auxiliary points.         0       Not possible to calculate the calibration data at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         0       By When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is a possiblity that the corresponding points.         0       When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         9155       Error         The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value. <t< td=""><td></td><td></td><td>Please change the description line 199 of the program. The</td></t<>			Please change the description line 199 of the program. The		
If MRTRY=10 Then         b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9154       First Property State         9154       Error         Cause       Corresponding points         When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       The approximate calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -1       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.       b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -1       The calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points are required.         Plass       Error       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data is stored in numerical value. <td></td> <td></td> <td>initial value retry count is set to 10.</td>			initial value retry count is set to 10.		
b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	b) Change termination condition         Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel.         If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then			If MRTRY>10 Then		
Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9154       Please change the description line 123 of the program. The initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then			b) Change termination condition		
9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a) When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points to the same straight line.	9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a) When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       The calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error fmml of calibration data is stored in numerical			Please change the description line 123 of the program. The		
value [mm] per pixel. If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program. <ul> <li>a) When MErr = -1</li> <li>The auxiliary point is less than 4.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2</li> <li>It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.</li> </ul> Countermeasure         a) When MErr = -1           The auxiliary point is less than 4.           b) When MErr = -2           It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.           Countermeasure         a) When MErr = -1           To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2           There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         b) When MErr = -2           There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         b) When MErr = -2           There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.           9155         Error         The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.           Cause         The estimation error of the calibration data is stored in numerical			initial value is set to 2. Addisionally, MSCale stores the distance		
If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then	If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then			value [mm] per pixel.		
9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         9154       Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program. <ul> <li>a) When MErr = -1</li> <li>The auxiliary point is less than 4.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2</li> <li>It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.</li> </ul> Countermeasure         a) When MErr = -1           To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.           b) When MErr = -2         The calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.           b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.           exists         for the same straight line.	If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision sensor, please change it to a large value.       9154     Error     Can not calculate the calibration data.       Cause     Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.       a) When MErr = -1     The auxiliary point is less than 4.       b) When MErr = -2     It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.       Countermeasure     a) When MErr = -1       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.       b) When MErr = -2     There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.       b) When MErr = -2     There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.       9155     Error     The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.       Countermeasure     Estimated error from of the calibration data is stored in numerical			If MDH<=(MSCale*2) Then		
9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         9154       Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program. <ul> <li>a) When MErr = -1</li> <li>The auxiliary point is less than 4.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2</li> <li>It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.</li> </ul> Countermeasure         a) When MErr = -1           To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.           b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.           b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.	9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Question       Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a)       When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b)       When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a)       When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a)       When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b)       When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error fmml of calibration data is stored in numerical					
9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program. <ul> <li>a) When MErr = -1</li> <li>The auxiliary point is less than 4.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2</li> <li>It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.</li> </ul> Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points of the they do not exist on the same straight line.	9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Question       Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a)       When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b)       When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a)       When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b)       When MErr = -2         The calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b)       When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         9155       Error         Setting       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error fmml of calibration data is stored in numerical			If the default value is small due to the resolution etc. of the vision		
9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a) When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	9154       Error       Can not calculate the calibration data.         Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a) When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data is stored in numerical			sensor, please change it to a large value.		
Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a) When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line.	Cause       Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the value of MErr in the program.         a) When MErr = -1       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error fmml of calibration data is stored in numerical	9154	Error	Can not calculate the calibration data.		
Value of MErr in the program.         a) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2         The content of the set o	9155       Error       Error       Cause       Numerical       Allow of MErr in the program.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Cause       Error Image primation of the same straight line.         Countermeasure       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Countermeasure       Countermeasure         Countermeasure       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.		Cause	Corresponding points may be set incorrectly. Please check the		
<ul> <li>a) When MErr = -1         The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         </li> <li>Countermeasure         a) When MErr = -1             To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2             There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.         </li> </ul>	<ul> <li>a) When MErr = -1         <ul> <li>The auxiliary point is less than 4.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2                 <ul> <li>It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.</li> </ul> <li>Countermeasure</li></li></ul></li></ul>			value of MErr in the program.		
The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2         It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	9155       Error       The auxiliary point is less than 4.         b) When MErr = -2       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         a) When MErr = -1       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2       There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data is stored in numerical			a) When MErr = -1		
<ul> <li>b) When MErr = -2 It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.</li> <li>Countermeasure         <ul> <li>a) When MErr = -1 To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2 There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	b) When MErr = -2 It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points. Countermeasure a) When MErr = -1 To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points. b) When MErr = -2 There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line. 9155 Error The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value. Countermeasure Estimated error Imml of calibration data is stored in numerical			The auxiliary point is less than 4.		
It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	9155       Error       It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set corresponding points.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Countermeasure       Countermeasure         Build of the estimation data is stored in numerical       Countermeasure       Countermeasure         Countermeasure       Countermeasure       Countermeasure       Countermeasure         Countermeasure       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.			b) When MErr = $-2$		
Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			It is not possible to calculate calibration data from the set		
Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	Countermeasure       a) When MErr = -1         To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         b) When MErr = -2         There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			corresponding points.		
<ul> <li>To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2         <ul> <li>There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	9155       Error       To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.         9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical		Countermeasure	a) When MErr = -1		
<ul> <li>points are required. Please set up more than 4 pairs of corresponding points.</li> <li>b) When MErr = -2         <ul> <li>There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.</li> </ul> </li> </ul>	9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			To calculate the calibration data, at least 4 pairs of corresponding		
<ul> <li>b) When MErr = -2</li> <li>There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.</li> </ul>	9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			points are required Please set up more than 4 pairs of		
b) When MErr = -2 There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	b) When MErr = -2 There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line. 9155 Error The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value. Cause The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value. Countermeasure Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			corresponding points.		
There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			b) When MErr = $-2$		
exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	9155       Error       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Cause       The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.         Countermeasure       Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			There is a possibility that the corresponding point being set		
points so that they do not exist on the same straight line.	9155     Error     The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.       Cause     The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.       Countermeasure     Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			exists on the same straight line. Please set corresponding		
	9155 Error The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value. Cause The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value. Countermeasure Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			points so that they do not exist on the same straight line		
19155   Error   The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default	Cause     The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value.       Countermeasure     Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical	9155	Error	The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default		
	Cause The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default value. Countermeasure Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			value.		
Cause The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default	value. Countermeasure Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical		Cause	The estimation error of the calibration data exceeds the default		
value.	Countermeasure Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			value.		
Countermeasure Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical			Countermeasure	Estimated error [mm] of calibration data is stored in numerical		

variable MScore in the program. If the estimation error is large, check Table 4-5 on the confirmation
items at the time of execution, Please re-execute the calibration.

### (4-7) Result

When the calibration is completed normally, please make sure of the following as a precaution.

- 1) Make sure the workpiece coordinate data is set in the robot.
  - a) Select <Online> <Parameter> <Operation Parameter> <Work Coordinate> to display the work coordinate parameter.
  - b) Make sure the work coordinate data has been updated.

■ Work Coordinate 1:RC1 (Simulation) Vorigin WO (WK1WO) (mm] X: 0.00 Y: 0.00 Z: 0.00 Teach Robot# 1: RV-7FRM-D	Switch to work coordinate	× number WORK Coordinate Data (WK1CORD) [mm, deg] X: 0.00 Y: 0.00 Z: 0.00 A: 0.00 B: 0.00 C: 0.00 C: 0.00	2 Work coordinate value is updated
		Explain Write	

Figure 4-10 update of workpiece coordinates

(5) Sample program (WRKCALB.prg)

'#####################################
Dim POFS(2) Dim PW(4), PV(4), PVtmp(4)
'### Initialization processing ###
P0 = P0 ' Teaching point PVSize = PVSize ' resolution (X, Y) PGoal = PGoal ' End condition (Posture of vision sensor in workpiece coordinates) PW(1) = PW(1) PW(2) = PW(2) PW(3) = PW(3)
PW(4) = PW(4) PAng = PAng 'The posture of the second point used when estimating the work coordinate origin POFS(1) = POFS(1) POFS(2) = POFS(2)
CCOM\$ = "COM2:" 'Open the line and set the line number CPRG1\$ = "WRKCALB.job" 'Set vision job
MHndENo = 1 'Hand eye calibration number MTLCalNo = 1 'Tool number (Distance from flange to camera center) MCalNo = 2 'Calibration number (Image coordinates -> Workpiece coordinates) MWrkNo = 1 'Workpiece coordinate number of registration destination MFIng = 120 'Focal length [mm] MGain = 1.0 'Gain value of feedback control
PVCenter = P_Zero 'Set image center PVCenter.X = PVSize.X/2 'X PVCenter.Y = PVSize.Y/2 'Y PT2V = P_Zero Ptmp = PVSCal( MHndENo, 0, 0, 0) PT2V.C = Ptmp.C 'Vision sensor mounting error
*main PBTL = P_Tool Mov P0 'Move to teaching point Tool P_NTool 'Tool initialization PC0 = P_Fbc ' Get current position
MFLG = 0 GoSub *SVSOPEN 'Open line of vision sensor GoSub *SCalcAngleScale 'Calculate camera angle / scale 'Tool settings M_Tool = MTLCalNo PTL = P_Tool Tool P_NTool PCamTL.X = PTL.X
MPRMA = MFIng/MScale   Internal parameter A
MPRMB = MFIng/MScale ' Internal parameter B MPRMC = PVCenter.X ' Internal parameter C MPRMD = PVCenter.Y ' Internal parameter D
PCS = PC0       ' Set initial position         GoSub *SMovCenter       'Move mark to camera center         Tool PCamTL 'Set camera tool         PC0 = P_Fbc ' Get current position

```
MFLG = 1
  GoSub *PrIVSWRK 'Parallelizing the vision sensor to the XY plane of work coordinates
  MScore = M_VSCErr(MCalNo) 'Accuracy evaluation of calibration data
  If MScore > 0.05 Then
    Error 9155
  Endlf
' Calculate posture of workpiece coordinates
  PRob = P_Fbc
  PRob2Wrk = PRob * PT2V * Inv(PVSPose)
  Tool PTL 'Set tool as camera center
'Calculate the origin position of workpiece coordinates
  MFLG = 0
                   ' Set initial position
  PCS = P_Fbc
  GoSub *SMovCenter
                            'Move mark to camera center
  P1 = P_Fbc ' Get current position
  PCS = P1 * PAng
  GoSub *SMovCenter
                            'Move mark to camera center
  P2 = P_Fbc ' Get current position
  MErr = PCalObtP(P1,P2,Pres) ' intersection exists
  If MErr <> 0 Then
    Error 9131
  Endlf
  PRob2Wrk.X = Pres.X
  PRob2Wrk,Y = Pres,Y
  PRob2Wrk.Z = Pres.Z
  P_WkCord(MWrkNo) = PRob2Wrk 'workpiece coordinate registration
  Tool PBTL
  Hlt
End
'### Vision line open ###
*SVSOPEN
  If M_NvOpen(1) = 1 Then
    NVClose 'line close '
    Wait M_NvOpen(1) <> 1
  Endlf
  Dly 1
  NVOpen CCOM$ As #1
                            ' Line open + log on
  Wait M_NvOpen(1) = 1 'Waiting logon to vision sensor
  NVLoad #1,CPRG1$
                           'Load vision program
Return
'### Vision recognition ###
*VSTRG
  NVRun #1,CPRG1$ 'Vision start
  EBRead #1,,MRes,PVS,MNUM,PV(1),PV(2),PV(3),PV(4) 'Acquisition of recognition result
  If MRes <> 1 Then
    Error 9101
    GoTo *VSTRG
  Endlf
  If MFLG = 1 Then
    If MNUM <> 4 Then
      Error 9102
      GoTo *VSTRG
    Endlf
    GoSub *VSResSort
  Endlf
```

```
Return
'ecognition result of vision and Correspondence of workpiece coordinate
*VSResSort
  ' X axis linear equation (ax+by+c=0)
  Ma = Cos(PVS.C)
  Mb = Sin(PVS.C)
  Mc = -Ma*PVS.X - Mb*PVS.Y
  'Y axis linear equation (-bx+ay+d=0)
  Md = Mb*PVS.X - Ma*PVS.Y
  For M1=1 To 4 Step 1
   Ptmp = PV(M1)
    If (Ma*Ptmp.X + Mb* Ptmp.Y + Mc) < 0 Then
        If (-Mb*Ptmp.X + Ma* Ptmp.Y + Md) < 0 Then
            PVtmp(1) = Ptmp
                                       ' ax+by+c < 0 && -bx+ay+d < 0
        Else
            PVtmp(3) = Ptmp
                                     ' ax+by+c < 0 && -bx+ay+d >= 0
        Endlf
   Else
        If (-Mb*Ptmp.X + Ma* Ptmp.Y + Md) < 0 Then
            PVtmp(2) = Ptmp
                                       ' ax+by+c >= 0 && -bx+ay+d < 0
        Else
                                      ' ax+by+c >= 0 && -bx+ay+d >= 0
            PVtmp(4) = Ptmp
        Endlf
    Endlf
  Next M1
  For MI=1 To 4 Step 1
      PV(MI) = PVtmp(MI)
  Next MI
Return
'### Camera angle / scale calculation ###
*SCalcAngleScale
'//First point shooting
  Mvs PC0*POFS(1)
  Dlv 0.5
  GoSub *VSTRG 'Image acquisition, check the mark.Assign mark position to PV
  PVS1=PVS
'//Second point shooting
  Mvs PC0*POFS(2)
  Dly 0.5
  GoSub *VSTRG ' Image acquisition, check the mark.Assign mark position to PV
  PVS2=PVS
'//Camera angle calculation (optical axis rotation)
  MRDX=POFS(2).X-POFS(1).X
  MRDY=POFS(2).Y-POFS(1).Y
  MVDX=PVS1.X-PVS2.X
  MVDY=PVS1.Y-PVS2.Y
  MVSC=Atn2(MRDY,MRDX)-Atn2(MVDY,MVDX)
  PVSC=P Zero
  PVSC.C=MVSC
'//Scale value calculation (Distance per pixel)
  MPL=Sqr(MVDX*MVDX+MVDY*MVDY)
  MRL=Sqr(MRDX*MRDX+MRDY*MRDY)
  MScale=MRL/MPL
Return
'### Move mark to camera center ###
*SMovCenter
'// Center position imaging
  MRTRY = 0
                                  'Retry counter initialization
  MFIN = 0
                                 ' Initialize end flag
```

```
PC = PCS
  While MFIN<>1
    Mov PC Type 0,0
    Dly 0.5
    GoSub *VSTRG
    PVSH = PVS
    GoSub *SCalcCenter
                                ' Calculate the correction amount to the center position
    PC = PC*PH
    If MDH <= (MScale*2) Then
                                 'Within the specified value (Plus or minus 1 pixel)
                                  'end flag
      MFIN = 1
    Else
      If MRTRY > 10 Then
                                   'Retry more than 10 times
        Error 9152
        MRTRY = 0
      Else
        MRTRY = MRTRY+1
      Endlf
    Endlf
  WEnd
  PCE = PC
Return
'### From vision recognition result (PVSH) to center position (PVCenter) of Corrected coordinates (PH),
Calculate the correction distance (MDH) ###
*SCalcCenter
  PHPXY = P Zero
                                   'Correction amount in the vision coordinate (pixel)
  PHPXY.X = PVSH.X-PVCenter.X
  PHPXY.Y = PVSH.Y-PVCenter.Y
  PHP = PVSC*PHPXY
                                     ' Correction amount in the tool coordinate (pixel)
  PH = P Zero
                                  ' Correction amount in the tool coordinate (mm)
  PH.X = PHP.X*MScale
  PH.Y = PHP.Y*MScale
  MDH = Sqr(PH.X*PH.X+PH.Y*PH.Y)
Return
'### Calculate calibration data to convert to workpiece coordinate from image coordinate ###
*CalVision2Work
  GoSub *VSTRG
  VSCalClr MCalNo
                     'Reset point for calibration
  For M1 = 1 To 4
    VSSetCP MCalNo, M1, PV(M1), PW(M1) 'Set vision coordinates and workpiece coordinate
  Next M1
  MRes = VSRegCD MCalNo ' Register calibration data to convert to workpiece coordinate from image
coordinate
  If MRes <> 0 Then
    Error 9154
  Endlf
Return
'###Parallelizing the plane of the vision sensor and the workpiece ###
*PrIVSWRK
  /// Loop until it becomes parallel
  MRTRY = 0
                                   'Retry counter initialization
  MFIN = 0
                                    ' Initialize end flag
  PTrg = PC0
  While MFIN<>1
    Mov PTrg Type 0,0
    GoSub *CalVision2Work
    PVSPose = PVSDrct( MCalNo, MPRMA, MPRMB, MPRMC, MPRMD ) 'Posture of vision sensor in
workpiece coordinate
    PVSMov = Inv(PVSPose) * PGoal
    MDH = Abs(Deg(PVSMov.A)) + Abs(Deg(PVSMov.B)) + Abs(Deg(PVSMov.C))
    'Convert movement amount in workpiece coordinate to robot coordinate
    PRMov = P_Zero
```

PRMov.A = PVSMov.B \* MGain PRMov.B = PVSMov.A \* MGain PRMov.C = PVSMov.C \* MGain PRMov = PT2V \* PRMov \* Inv( PT2V ) PTrg = PTrg \* PRMov If MDH <= 1.0 Then 'Within the specified value (1.0 degree) MFIN = 1'end flag Else If MRTRY > 10 Then 'Retry more than 10 times Error 9130 MRTRY = 0Else MRTRY = MRTRY+1 Endlf Endlf WEnd Return

# 4.4 Inter-robot relational calibration

### (1) Function Outline

"Inter-robot relational calibration" can determine the positional relationship between robots by defining the same workpiece coordinate with multiple robots. "Collision avoidance function" and "Cooperative operation function" is easy to set the required position relationship between robots. (CR800-R/Q only)



Figure 4-11 Inter-robot relational calibration

### (2) Standard Specifications

Table 4-8 Standard specifications of the inter-robot relational calibration

Items	Specifications
Robot	Vertical 6-axis robot
	* It can't be used with the vertical 5-axis robot, the horizontal 4-axis robot and the user robot.
Language	Only MELFA-BASIC VI
Setting method of vision sensor	Hand eye method
Output information	Position and posture of the workpiece coordinate of each robot
Remarks	



### (3-1) set the calibration sheet

Within the motion range of each robot, Place the calibration sheet.



Figure 4-12 Set the calibration sheet

### (3-2) Perform work coordinate calibration

Using work coordinate data obtained in the previous object, Perform work coordinate calibration. The following describes how to set the relative calibration between robots in "Collision avoidance function" and " Cooperative operation function".

### ① Collision avoidance function

In order to use the collision avoidance function (collision check between robots), it is necessary to perform Inter-robot relational calibration. By using this function, the object can be simplified. For collision avoidance function, refer to the instruction manual "Detailed explanations of functions and operations".



Figure 4-13 Inter-robot relational calibration

1) Setting method of parameter RBCORD

For each robot, after performing workpiece coordinate calibration, Please execute the following program.

For the variable MWrkNo, enter the registered workpiece coordinate number.

<program></program>	
MWrkNo = 1	'Workpiece coordinate number of registration destination
PRob2Wrk = P_WkCord(MWrkNo)	'Get workpiece coordinate data
PRBCORD = Inv(PRob2Wrk)	' From the common coordinate, the base coordinate
origin of each robot	
PrmWrite 1, "RBCORD", PRBCORD	D 'Write RBCORD

#### 2) Check the parameter RBCORD

- a) Select <online> <parameter> <parameter list> and display the parameter list.
- b) Enter the "RBCORD" on the parameter list and display the parameter editing.
- c) Check the RBCORD has been updated.

	er Edit			
Parame	ter Name :	RBCORD Robot# : 1		
Ex	planation :	Common coordinates for Collision avoid	dance (X,Y,Z,A,B,C)	
1:0	0.00	5 :	: 0.00	
2:0	0.00	6 :	0.00	
3:0	0.00			
4:0	0.00			
		Pr	rint Write Close	]

### 2 Cooperative operation function

In order to use the cooperative operation functionit is necessary to perform Inter-robot relational calibration.By using this function, the object can be simplified.

For cooperative operation function, refer to the instruction manual "Detailed explanations of functions and operations".



Figure 4-14 Adjust common base coordinates

1) Setting common frame coordinates of robot 1 and robot 2

The cooperative operation function defines common frame coordinates. The position variables PFR1 and PFR2 can be obtained as follows.

For each robot, execute the following program after workpiece coordinate calibration. For the variable MWrkNo, enter the registered workpiece coordinate number.

<Program of robot 1>

MWrkNo = 1	' Workpiec	e coor	dinate numb	er of re	gist	ration de	estinat	ion
PRob2Wrk = P_WkCord(MWrkNo)	'G	iet worl	piece coord	linate d	lata			
PFR1 = PRob2Wrk	'Common	frame	coordinate	origin	as	viewed	from	the
1								

robot 1

<program 2="" of="" robot=""></program>	
MWrkNo = 1	'Workpiece coordinate number of registration destination
PRob2Wrk = P_WkCord(MWrkNo)	Get workpiece coordinate data
PFR2 = PRob2Wrk	' Common frame coordinate origin as viewed from the
robot 2	-

- 2) Setting the base coordinates of robot 2(Only robot 2)
  - Execute the following program and set base coordinates of robot 2 to base coordinates of robot 1.

```
< Program >

'The base coordinates of the robot 2 are made common to the robot 1.

PBTMP = PFR2*Inv(PFR1)

PBASE = Inv(PBTMP)

Base PBASE 'Setting the base coordinates
```

# 4.5 Robot Programming Language

It describes commands, system functions, and state variables used in the automatic calibration function.

### 4.5.1 Language list

(1) Command list

Table 4-9 Commands used in the calibration support function

No.	Target function	Command	Explanation	Page
1	Tool length calibration	TICIrPt	Initialize calculation auxiliary points. (Set all points to zero)	4-63
2		TISetPt	Set one calculation auxiliary point.	4-64
3		TICal2D	Calculate the tool coordinate (XY) and write it in the parameter MEXTLn (n: 1 to 16).	4-65
4		TICal3D	Calculate the tool coordinate (XYZ) and write it in the parameter MEXTLn (n: 1 to 16).	4-66
5	Vision calibration	VSCalClr	Clear the image coordinates of the target calibration number and the robot coordinates.	4-67
6		VSSetCP	Set corresponding points between image coordinates and robot coordinates.	4-68
7		VSRegCD	Calibration data is obtained from a plurality of corresponding points and registered in the robot controller.	4-69

### (2) System function list

Table 4-10 System function used in the calibration support function				
No.	Target function	System	Explanation	Page
		function		
1	-	PVSCal	Convert image coordinates to robot coordinates using	4-70
			vision calibration data (parameters VSCALB 1-8).	
2	Workpiece	PVSDrct	Calculate the attitude of the camera from the	4-71
	coordinate		calibration data.	
3	calibration	PCalObtP	The point of interest is calculated from the two position	4-73
			data of the robot.	

### (3) State variable list

### Table 4-11 State variable used in the calibration support function

No.	Target function	State	Explanation	Page
		variable		
1	Tool length	M_TIErr	Returns the estimation error of the tool coordinates of	4-75
	calibration		the specified tool number.	
2	Vision caribration	M_VSDErr	Returns the estimation error of the specified vision	4-76
			calibration data.	

## 4.5.2 Language detailed description

<How to read the described items>

[Function]	<ul> <li>: Indicates the command word functions.</li> <li>: Indicates how to input the command word argument.</li></ul>
[Format]	The argument is shown in <>. <li>[] indicates that the argument can be omitted.</li> <li>[] indicates that a space is required.</li>
[Terminology] [Reference Program] [Explanation] [The available robot type] [Related parameter] [Related system variables] [Related instructions]	<ul> <li>Indicates the meaning and range, etc. of the argument.</li> <li>Indicates a program example.</li> <li>Indicates detailed functions and cautions, etc.</li> <li>Indicates the available robot type.</li> <li>Indicates the related parameter.</li> <li>Indicates the related system variables.</li> <li>Indicates the related instructions.</li> </ul>
### TICIrPt (Tool Clear Point)

#### [Function]

In the tool length calibration, initialize the calculation auxiliary point set to the target tool number and the tool data (parameter MEXTL <Tool number>).

### [Format]

TICIrPt <Tool number>

<Tool number> Specify the tool number to be registered. Setting range: 1 to 16

### [Reference Program]

- 1 Dim PTL(3)
- 2 TICIrPt 1
- 3 For M1=1 To 3
- 4 TISetPt 1, M1, PTL(M1)
- 5 Next
- 6 MErr=TICal3D 1
- 7 If MErr<>0 Then Error 91008 MCalErr=M\_TIErr(1)
- 9 If MCalErr>0.25 Then Error 9100

'Clear tool length and auxiliary point of tool number 1.

'Set auxiliary point.

'Calculate tool length (X, Y, Z) and register in tool number 1. 'If registration of the tool length fails, an error is output. 'Estimate tool length error.

[Explanation]

(1) All set auxiliary points and tool data are deleted. Please use with care.

[Related instructions] <u>TISetPt</u>, <u>TICal2D</u>, <u>TICal3D</u>

[Related system variables] <u>M\_TIErr</u>

### TISetPt (Tool Set Point)

### [Function]

In the tool length calibration, set the calculation auxiliary point.

In order to calculate the tool length, at least three auxiliary points are required.

### [Format]

<tool number=""></tool>	Specify the tool number to be registered.			
	Setting range: 1 to 16			
<auxiliary number="" point=""></auxiliary>	Specify the auxiliary point number of tool length calibration.			
51	Setting range: 1 to 8			
<robot position=""></robot>	Set the robot position (XYZ coordinate) to be registered in the			
	auxiliary point.			

[Refe

1	DIM PTL(3)	
2	TICIrPt 1	'Clear tool length and auxiliary point of tool number 1.
3	For M1=1 To 3	
4	TISetPt 1, M1, PTL(M1)	'Set auxiliary point.
5	Next	
6	MErr=TlCal3D 1	'Calculate tool length (X, Y, Z) and register in tool number 1.
7	If MErr<>0 Then Error 9100	'If registration of the tool length fails, an error is output.
8	MCalErr=M_TIErr(1)	'Estimate tool length error.
9	If MCalErr>0.25 Then Error 9100	

[Explanation]

- (1) Use the X, Y, Z, A, B, C elements of the position type to set the auxiliary point. The position data to be set is XYZ coordinate.
- (2) Before calculating the tool length, it is necessary to set three or more auxiliary points.

[Related instructions] TICIrPt, TICal2D, TICal3D

[Related system variables] M\_TIErr

### TICal2D (Tool Calibration 2D)

#### [Function]

In the tool length calibration, calculate the tool length using the registered auxiliary point (3 points or more). The calculated tool data is set to the robot controller (parameter MEXTL <tool number>), and its accuracy is estimated.

In this command, two-dimensional tool data is calculated and the set tool coordinates are (X, Y, 0, 0, 0, 0).

### [Format]

<	Result	> = TICal2D	O <tool number=""></tool>
	<too< th=""><th>ol number&gt;</th><th>Specify the tool number to be registered. Setting range: 1 to 16</th></too<>	ol number>	Specify the tool number to be registered. Setting range: 1 to 16
	<re< th=""><th>sult&gt;</th><th><ul> <li>Returns the execution result.</li> <li>0: Success</li> <li>1: Failure <ul> <li>Not enough auxiliary points. To calculate the tool length using at least three auxiliary points, please set at least two auxiliary points.</li> <li>2: Failure <ul> <li>It is not possible to calculate the tool length from the set auxiliary point. Please set the auxiliary point again.</li> </ul> </li> <li>3: Failure <ul> <li>Estimated error of calculated tool data is 100 mm or more. Please set the auxiliary point again.</li> </ul> </li> </ul></li></ul></th></re<>	sult>	<ul> <li>Returns the execution result.</li> <li>0: Success</li> <li>1: Failure <ul> <li>Not enough auxiliary points. To calculate the tool length using at least three auxiliary points, please set at least two auxiliary points.</li> <li>2: Failure <ul> <li>It is not possible to calculate the tool length from the set auxiliary point. Please set the auxiliary point again.</li> </ul> </li> <li>3: Failure <ul> <li>Estimated error of calculated tool data is 100 mm or more. Please set the auxiliary point again.</li> </ul> </li> </ul></li></ul>
[Refere	ence Pr 1 2	ogram] Dim PTL(3 T I ClrPt 1	) 'Clear tool length and auxiliary point of tool number 1.

- 3 For M1=1 To 3
- TISetPt 1, M1, PTL(M1) 4

'Calculate tool length (X, Y, 0) and register in tool number 1.

'If registration of the tool length fails, an error is output.

'Set auxiliary point.

'Estimate tool length error.

- 5 Next
- MErr=TICal2D 1 6
- 7 If MErr<>0 Then Error 9100
- 8 MCalErr=M TIErr(1)
- 9 If MCalErr>0.25 Then Error 9100

[Explanation]

- (1) In order to use TICal2D, it is necessary to set at least three auxiliary points to be used for tool length calibration beforehand. (Use the TISetPt command to set the auxiliary point.)
- (2) If auxiliary point setting is registered incorrectly, tool length may not be calculated.

[Related instructions] TICIrPt, TISetPt

[Related system variables] M\_TIErr

### TICal3D (Tool Calibration 3D)

### [Function]

In the tool length calibration, calculate the tool length using the registered auxiliary point (3 points or more). The calculated tool data is set to the robot controller (parameter MEXTL <tool number>), and its accuracy is estimated.

In this command, three-dimensional tool data is calculated and the set tool coordinates are (X, Y, Z, 0, 0, 0).

### [Format]

<Result> = TICal3D <Tool number> <Tool number>Specify the tool number to be registered. Setting range: 1 to 16 Returns the execution result. <Result> 0: Success -1 : Failure Not enough auxiliary points. To calculate the tool length using at least three auxiliary points, please set at least two auxiliary points. -2 : Failure It is not possible to calculate the tool length from the set auxiliary point. Please set the auxiliary point again. -3 : Failure Estimated error of calculated tool data is 100 mm or more. Please set the auxiliary point again. [Reference Program] Dim PTL(3) 1 2 T I ClrPt 1 'Clear tool length and auxiliary point of tool number 1. 3

For M1=1 To 3
 TISetPt 1, M1, PTL(M1)

'Set auxiliary point.

'Estimate tool length error.

5 Next

- MErr=TICal3D 1
   If MErr<>0 Then Error 9100
   'Calculate tool length (X, Y, Z) and register in tool number 1.
   'If registration of the tool length fails, an error is output.
  - 7 If MErr<>0 Then Error 9100 8 MCalErr=M TIErr(1)
  - 9 If MCalErr>0.25 Then Error 9100

[Explanation]

- (1) In order to use TICal3D, it is necessary to set at least three auxiliary points to be used for tool length calibration beforehand. (Use the TISetPt command to set the auxiliary point.)
- (2) If auxiliary point setting is registered incorrectly, tool length may not be calculated.

[Related instructions] <u>TICIrPt</u>, <u>TISetPt</u>

[Related system variables] M\_TIErr

### VSCalClr (Vision Calibration Clear)

#### [Function]

In the vision calibration, erase all corresponding points and calibration data set for the target calibration number.

### [Format]

VSCalClr <Calibration number>

< Calibration number > Specify the target calibration number. Setting range: 1 to 8

[Reference Program]

	logianij	
1	Dim P(4)	
2	CPRG\$="PatternMatching.job"	'Set vision job name.
3	VSCalClr 1	'Clear corresponding point.
4	For M1=1 To 4	
5	Mov P(M1)	'Move to capturing position.
6	Dly 0.5	
7	NVRun #1, CPRG\$	'Run vision.
8	EBRead #1, , MNUM, PV	'Capture recognition result.
9	PCam=PV	'Assign image coordinates.
10	PRob=P_Fbc	'Assign robot coordinates.
11	VSSetCP 1, M1, PCam, PRob	'Set corresponding points to be used for calibration.
12	Next	
13	MErr=VSRegCD 1	'Registering calibration data.
14	If MErr<>0 Then Error 9100	'Failed to register the calibration data.
15	MCalErr=M_VSCErr(1)	'Estimate error of calibration data.
16	If MCalErr>0.25 Then Error 9100	

### [Explanation]

(1) All correspondence points and calibration data set by the VSSetCP instruction are deleted. Please use with care.

[Related instructions] <u>VSSetCP</u>, <u>VSRegCD</u>

[Related state variables] <u>M\_VSCErr</u>

### VSSetCP (Vision Set Calibration Point)

### [Function]

In vision calibration, specify the combination (corresponding point) of the three-dimensional position (robot coordinates) of the calibration mark and the mark position (image coordinates) of the image. In order to perform the calibration, it is necessary to specify at least four corresponding points.

### [Format]

VS	VSSetCP <calibration number="">, <setting corresponding="" number="" of="" point="">,</setting></calibration>				
	<position coordinates="" image="" of="">, <position coordinates="" of="" robot=""></position></position>				
	<calibration number=""></calibration>	Specify the calibration number to be registered. Setting range: 1 to 8			
	<setting corresponding="" number="" of="" point=""> Specify the correspondence point number of the calibration.</setting>				
	<position coordinates="" image="" of=""> <position coordinates="" of="" robot=""></position></position>	Setting range: 1 to 20 Specify the position of image coordinates. Specify the position of robot coordinates.			
[Referen	ce Program]				
	<ol> <li>Dim P(4)</li> <li>CPRG\$="PatternMatching.job"</li> <li>VSCalClr 1</li> <li>For M1=1 To 4</li> <li>Mov P(M1)</li> <li>Dly 0.5</li> <li>NVRun #1, CPRG\$</li> <li>EBRead #1, , MNUM, PV</li> <li>PCam=PV</li> <li>PRob=P_Fbc</li> <li>VSSetCP 1, M1, PCam, PRob</li> <li>Next</li> <li>MErr=VSRegCD 1</li> <li>If MErr&lt;&gt;0 Then Error 9100</li> <li>MCalErr=M_VSCErr(1)</li> <li>If MCalErr&gt;0.25 Then Error 9100</li> </ol>	<ul> <li>'Set vision job name.</li> <li>'Clear corresponding point.</li> <li>'Move to capturing position.</li> <li>'Run vision.</li> <li>'Capture recognition result.</li> <li>'Assign image coordinates.</li> <li>'Assign robot coordinates.</li> <li>'Set corresponding points to be used for calibration.</li> <li>'Registering calibration data.</li> <li>'Failed to register the calibration data.</li> <li>'Estimate error of calibration data.</li> </ul>			

[Explanation]

- (1) Both image coordinates and robot coordinates are registered using X, Y elements of position type data.
- (2) Before registering the calibration data, it is necessary to set four or more corresponding points to be used for the calibration with this command.

[Related instructions] VSCalClr, VSRegCD

[Related state variables] <u>M\_VSCErr</u>

### VSRegCD (Vision Register Calibration Data)

### [Function]

In the vision calibration, calibration data is calculated using the set corresponding point (4 points or more), the data is set to the robot controller (parameter VSCALB <calibration number>), and the accuracy is estimated.

### [Format]

<f< th=""><th colspan="4">Result&gt; = VSRegCD <calibration number=""></calibration></th></f<>	Result> = VSRegCD <calibration number=""></calibration>			
	<calibration number=""></calibration>	Specify the cali	bration number to be registered.	
Setting range: 7 Result> Result> Returns the execution of the execu		<ul> <li>Returns the exe</li> <li>0 : Success</li> <li>-1 : Failure</li> <li>Not enoug</li> <li>four auxilia</li> <li>-2 : Failure</li> <li>Calibration</li> <li>There is a</li> <li>same strai</li> <li>the same s</li> </ul>	to a ecution result. In auxiliary points. To calculate the tool length using at leas ary points, please set at least four auxiliary points. data can not be calculated from the set corresponding point. possibility that the corresponding point being set exists on the ght line. Please set corresponding points that do not exist or straight line.	
[Referer	nce Program]			
	2 CPRG\$="Pattern 3 VSCalClr 1 4 For M1=1 To 4	Matching.job"	'Set vision job name. 'Clear corresponding point.	
	5 Mov P(M1) 6 Dly 0.5		'Move to capturing position.	
	<ul> <li>7 NVRun #1, CPRG\$</li> <li>8 EBRead #1, , MNUM, PV</li> <li>9 PCam=PV</li> <li>10 PRob=P_Fbc</li> <li>11 VSSetCP 1, M1, PCam, PRob</li> <li>12 Next</li> <li>13 MErr=VSRegCD 1</li> </ul>		'Run vision. 'Capture recognition result. 'Assign image coordinates. 'Assign robot coordinates. 'Set corresponding points to be used for calibration. 'Registering calibration data.	
	14 If MErr<>0 Then 15 MCalErr=M_VSC 16 If MCalErr>0.25 T	Error 9100 Err(1) hen Error 9100	'Failed to register the calibration data. 'Estimate error of calibration data.	

[Explanation]

- (1) To use this command, it is necessary to set four or more corresponding points to be used for calibration beforehand. (Use VSSetCP to set corresponding points)
- (2) Calibration data may not be registered if the corresponding point setting is registered incorrectly. If the calibration data can not be registered (when the accuracy of the calibration data is low), check the Table 4-5 and re-execute the calibration.

[Related instructions] VSCalClr, VSSetCP

[Related state variables] <u>M\_VSCErr</u>

### PVSCal (PVS calibration)

### [Function]

Using the calibration data (parameters VSCALB 1 to 8) set by the vision calibration function, convert the image coordinates of the vision sensor to the robot world coordinates.

### [Format]

<position variables=""> = PVSCal (<calibration number="">,<vision x="">,</vision></calibration></position>			
$<$ Vision Y>, $<$ Vision $\theta$ > [, $<$ Reference Position Variables>])			
-Desition variables			
	Returns the robot world coordinate for the calculation result of the coordinate conversions.		
<calibration number=""></calibration>	Specify the target calibration number. Setting range: 1 to 8		
<vision x=""></vision>	X pixel coordinate of the vision sensor. [pixel]		
<vision y=""></vision>	Y pixel coordinate of the vision sensor. [pixel]		
< Vision $\theta$ > $\theta$ pixel coordinate of the vision sensor. [deg.]			
<reference position="" variables=""> Specify the reference position as s position constant or positic variable.</reference>			
	<ul> <li>When attaching a camera to the hand, specify the robot position (at the time of the image recognition) where the image is recognized with the vision sensor as a reference position. The relative calculation is performed as follows.</li> <li><robot at="" image="" of="" position="" recognition="" the="" time="">*<calculation conversion="" coordinate="" of="" result="" the=""></calculation></robot></li> <li>When omitted, the absolute coordinate is set.</li> </ul>		

### [Reference Program]

- 1 'Start the target vision sensor with Open/Print/Input command to substitute the acquired image coordinate [pixel] for numeric variable.
- 2 'MX=X [pixcel] of the vision sensor
- 3 'MY=Y [pixcel] of the vision sensor
- 4  $'MT=\theta$  [deg.] of the vision sensor
- 5 PVS=PVSCal(1,MX,MY,MT) 'Changes the image coordinate to the robot (world) coordinate with Calibration 1.
- 6 PVS.Z=PDST.Z 'Specifies Z height.
- 7 Mov PVS, -50
  8 Mvs PVS
  1 Moves to a position 50 mm above the calculated position.
  1 Moves to the calculated position.

[Explanation]

- (1) Using the vision calibration data (parameters VSCALB 1 to 8), convert the image coordinates of the vision sensor to the world coordinates of the robot.
  - Please use the automatic calibration function or the 2D vision calibration function of RT Toolbox 3 beforehand to set the parameters VSCALB 1 ~ 8 used for coordinate conversion.
- (2) If the calibration numbers other than 1 to 8 are set, error L3110 (Arg. value range over) occurs.
- (3) If the numbers of argument are not either four or five, error L3120 (No. of arg. is over) occurs.
- (4) If the type of arguments is different, error L3810 (Different argument type) occurs.
- (5) If calibration data is calculated with VSRegCD, coordinate conversion taking into consideration the relationship between the robot coordinates and the hand system of the image coordinates is automatically carried out.

[Related instructions] VSRegCD

### PVSDrct (PVS Direction)

### [Function]

Estimate the camera posture from the vision calibration data.

However, it is necessary to give the internal parameters of the vision sensor as an argument.

### [Format]



[Explanation]

(1) Estimate the camera posture (relative to the plane of vision calibration) from the vision calibration data and

the internal parameters of the vision sensor.

(2) For the <positional variable of the assignment destination>, only the value of the ABC component is substituted. 0 is assigned to the XYZ component.

[Related instructions] VSRegCD

### PCalObtP (P Calcurate Object Position)

### [Function]

Calculate the position data of the point of interest (intersection) of the two position data.

### [Format]

<Numeric Variable> = PCalObtP(<Position data A>,< Position data B>,<Calculated position>)

<position a="" data=""> <position b="" data=""> <calculated position=""> <numeric variable=""></numeric></calculated></position></position>	Specify the first position data. Specify the second position data. Specify the storage location variable of the calculation result. Returns the execution result. 0 : Success
	-1 : Failure
	It is not possible to calculate the point of interest.

The point of interest (intersection) is calculated as follows.

- position data and a straight line projected position data B and extended in the + Z direction on a plane defined from an arbitrary point on the Z coordinate of position data A.
- (1) Calculate the intersection point 1 of the two (2) Calculate the intersection 2 of the straight line projected position data A and extended in the + Z direction on the two position data and the plane defined from the arbitrary point on the Z coordinate of position data B.



(3) Returns the midpoint of the two intersection points as the calculated position.



### [Reference Program]

- 'P1 : Position data A, P2 : Position data B 1 'Calculate the intersection point of P1 and P2
- 2 MErr = PCalObtP(P1,P2,Pres)
- 3 If MErr <> 0 Then
- 4 Error 9100
- 5 Endlf

### [Explanation]

- (1) Calculate the intersection point of the straight line extended in + Z direction of the two position data and output it.
- Only the XYZ component is assigned to the position variable specified in <Calculated position>. 0 is (2) assigned to the ABC component.

If two position and orientation data are the same, or if no intersection is obtained, all components 0 will be substituted.

'When the intersection point does not exist

### <u>M\_TIErr</u>

### [Function]

Returns error of tool data calculated by tool length calibration (execution of TICal2D / TICal3D command).

[Format]

<Numeric variable>=M\_TIErr(<Tool number>)

<numeric variable=""></numeric>	Returns the execution result.
<tool number=""></tool>	Specify the target tool number.
	Setting range: 1 to 16

### [Reference Program]

1	Dim	P٦	TL(3)
		_	

- 2 TICIrPt 1
- 3 For M1=1 To 3
- 4 TISetPt 1, M1, PTL(M1)
- 5 Next
- 6 MErr=TICal3D 1
- 7 If MErr<>0 Then Error 91008 MCalErr=M TIErr(1)
- 9 If MCalErr>0.25 Then Error 9100

[Explanation]

(1) This evaluation value means the accuracy of the tool data. It does not mean an error when the robot operates.

'Set auxiliary point

'Clear tool length and auxiliary point of tool number 1

'Failed to register the calibration data.

'Estimate error of calibration data.

'Calculate tool length (X, Y, Z) and register in tool number 1

- (2) It turns to 0 when the power of the robot controller is turned off.
- (3) Returns the error of tool data last calculated by tool length calibration (execution of TICal2D / TICal3D command).

[Related instructions] <u>TICal2D</u>, <u>TICal3D</u>

### M\_VSCErr

### [Function]

In the vision calibration function, it returns the estimation error [mm] of the calibration data estimated by the VSRegCD command.

-	<numeric variable=""> = M_VSCErr(<calibration number="">)</calibration></numeric>				
	<numeric variable=""></numeric>		Specify numerical variable to assign. When estimation error can not be calculated, it becomes "-1".		
			Specify the target calibration number. Setting range: 1 to 8		
[Ref	erence P	rogram]			
	1	Dim P(4)			
	2	<ul> <li>2 CPRG\$="PatternMatching.job"</li> <li>3 VSCalClr 1</li> <li>4 For M1=1 To 4</li> </ul>		'Set vision job name.	
	3			'Clear corresponding point.	
	4				
	5	Mov P(M1)		'Move to capturing position.	
	6	Dly 0.5			
	7	NVRun #1, CPRG\$		'Run vision.	
	8	EBRead #1, , MNUM, PV		'Capture recognition result.	
	9	PCam=PV		'Assign camera coordinates.	
	10	PRob=P Fbc		'Assign robot coordinates.	
	11	VSSetCP 1, M1, PCam, PRob		'Set corresponding points to be used for calibration.	
	12	Next			
	13	MErr=VSRegCD 1		'Registering calibration data.	
	14	If MErr<>0 Then E	Error 9100	'Failed to register the calibration data.	
	15	MCalErr=M_VSCI	Err(1)	'Estimate error of calibration data.	
	16	If MCalErr>0.25 Then Error 9100			

[Explanation]

- (1) The reliability (accuracy) of the registered calibration data can be calculated by using the corresponding point group when calculating the calibration data and also setting the error [mm] between the robot coordinate value and the robot coordinate value calculated from the image coordinate value and it will be evaluated.
- (2) This evaluation value means the accuracy of the calibration data and does not mean error when the robot operates.
- (3) If the calibration data is not registered, -1 is returned.
- (4) If the accuracy of the calibration data is low, check the **Table 4-5** and re-execute the calibration.

[Related instructions] VSRegCD

# 5. Robot mechanism temperature compensation function

This chapter explains the robot mechanism temperature compensation function.

### 5.1 Specification

Robot mechanism temperature compensation function is a function to measure the temperature of the robot arm and automatically correct errors due to thermal expansion of the arm.

With this function, even if the temperature changes depending on the season and time zone, positional shift due to thermal expansion of the robot arm can be suppressed.



### Table 5-1 Basic specification of robot mechanism temperature compensation function

Contents	Specifications
Compatible robot	Vertical articulated (6-axis) robot Horizontal articulated (4-axis) robot *Not supported with vertical articulated (5-axis) robot or user mechanism. *Additional axis is not subject to temperature correction
Domorika	
Remarks	However, when specifying the position command by pulse coordinates like the Mxt command (real-time external control command) specified with motor pulse coordinate data, temperature correction is not performed.

This function is effective only by installing the MELFA Smart Plus card pack. \*When using the MELFA Smart Plus card, "2" must be set in the parameter "SMART+1". (When the origin setting is not complete, this function is invalid.)

If you wish to disable this function with the MELFA Smart Plus card/card pack installed, set the parameter "MTCENA" to "0" and turn the controller power ON again.

Table 5-2.	State of	Robot	mechanism	temperature	compensation fu	nction
------------	----------	-------	-----------	-------------	-----------------	--------

Item	parameter "SMART+1"	parameter "MTCENA"	Function state
MELFA Smart Plus card	2	0	Invalid
		1	Enable
	Others	0	Invalid
		1	Invalid
MELFA Smart Plus	-	0	Invalid
card pack		1	Enable

### 5.2 **Precautions**

Describe points to be aware of when using robot mechanism temperature compensation function.

### 5.2.1 Please enable this function from the beginning

During automatic operation by the robot program, compensation is performed with the position data registered in the program as the reference position.

When using this function, it is necessary to register the position data that considered temperature compensation, so please enable this function before teaching position.



When this function is enabled after position teaching is performed with this function invalid state, or when this function is invalidated after position teaching is performed with this function enable state, there is a possibility that the position will be shifted. It is possible to confirm the state of this function by a variable M\_SmartPlus(2). (For details on variable, refer to "3.3.Robot language specification".)

# 5. 2. 2 Accuracy is not obtained near the singular point and the vicinity of the motion range

In the vicinity of the singular point, since the robot may operate greatly with slight position correction, the robot mechanism temperature compensation function is automatically invalidated. (For details on singularities, refer to "separate volume: instruction manual / detailed explanation of functions and operations".)

Also, even when the position after temperature compensation is out of the range of motion of the robot, the robot mechanism temperature compensation function is automatically invalidated.

In work requiring precision, we recommend avoiding singular points and the vicinity of the operating range.

In order to suppress the sudden change of the command position due to automatically invalidation of the robot mechanism temperature compensation function, the range where the temperature compensation is restricted is set near the singular point and the outside of the operation range.

This limit range can be adjusted with the parameter "MTCSNGL1" (invalid range), "MTCSNGL2" (limit range).

If the robot vibrates due to a sudden change in the command position when passing through the singular point, it can be improved by widening the limit range.





When the limit range is narrow or the range between the invalid range and the restricted range is narrow, the command position abruptly changes near the singular point or the operation range, an error H115n (servo amplifier communication data command value error) or an error H091n (servo amplifier overspeed) occurs, and an error stop may occur. (n is the axis Number)

#### 5.3 **Parameter setting**

Parameters used in robot mechanism temperature compensation function are explained.

(For the setting method of parameters, refer to "separate volume: instruction manual / detailed explanation of functions and operations".)

Parameter	Parameter	No. of	etails explanation	Factory setting
	name	arrays		
Robot mechanism temperature compensation Function selection	MTCENA	Integer 1	Specify enable / disable of robot mechanism temperature compensation function.	1 (Enable) Applicable robot only 0 (invalid) for other robot

Parameter	Parameter name	No. of arravs	etails explanation	Factory setting
Robot mechanism temperature compensation Invalid range	MTCSNGL1	arrays Real value 4	In the vicinity of the singular point and in the vicinity of the movement range, specify the range in which the robot mechanism temperature compensation function is to be invalidated.  1st element : Near the structure flag (RIGHT / LEFT) It is specified by the distance on the XY plane from the singular point. Unit : [mm] * 0 is on a singular point 2nd element : Near the structure flag (ABOVE / BELOW) It is specified by the J3 axis angle from the singular point. Unit : [deg] * 0 is on a singular point 3rd element : Near the structure flag (NONFLIP/FLIP) It is specified by the J5 axis angle from the singular point. Unit : [deg] * 0 is on a singular point 4th element : Near the operating range It is specified by the distance from the movement range boundary when the position farthest from the movement range is 0 [%] and the movement range boundary 	Vertical articulated (6-axis) robot = $(0, 5, 5, 0)$ Horizontal articulated (4-axis) robot = $(5, 0, 0, 0)$
Robot mechanism temperature compensation Limit range	MTCSNGL2	Real value 4	In the vicinity of the singular point and the vicinity of the motion range, specify the range to limit the compensation amount of the robot mechanism temperature compensation function. The position of each element is the same as the parameter "MTCSNGL1".	Vertical articulated (6-axis) robot = $(100, 15, 15, 1)$ Horizontal articulated (4-axis) robot = $(15, 0, 0, 1)$

## 6. Coordinated control for additional axes

In this chapter, we explain coordinated control for additional axes.

Functions	Contents
Base coordinate cooperative control (Refer to 6.2)	Allows synchronized operation where a robot is installed on an additional axis (linear drive axis) and its speed relative to the workpiece is specified. Supports machining of large workpieces using linear, circular or spline interpolation that exceeds the robot's range of movement.
Additional axis tracking (Refer to 6.3)	Allows synchronized operation where tracking of the robot and workpieces on an additional axis (linear axis) is specified. Linear or circular interpolation while the workpiece is being transported allows operations such as precision sealing work and surface inspections.

Table 6-1 Function list of coordinated control for additional axes

### 6.1 Calibration of base coordinates

### 6.1.1 Overview

In this chapter, we explain how to match the base coordinates of robot and additional axis / user mechanisms. This setting is necessary when you use base coordinate cooperative control or additional axis tracking.

### 6.1.2 Specification

You can match the base coordinates of robot and additional axis / user mechanisms by setting the offset from the robot's world coordinate system origin to the base coordinate origin of the additional axis / user mechanisms.

- The base coordinate system of the additional axis / user mechanisms is the origin where the position data is 0mm, and the +X axisi is the movement direction.
- · Set it individually for each joint axis.





### 6.1.3 Operation procedure



### 6.1.4 Parameter setting

The parameter list which is used is below.

Parameter	Parameter name	Element number	E	explain of contents	Factory setting
Parameter Base coordinate offset data of additional axis / user mechanisms.	Parameter name BSWOFST1 BSWOFST2 BSWOFST3	Element number Real number 6	E L1(J7)axis/ J1 single axis L2(J8)axis/ J2 single axis J3 single axis	Explain of contents         Set the offset data from the robot's world coordinate system origin to the base coordinate origin of the additional axis / user mechanisms. (X, Y, Z, A, B, C). (In case of robot (mechanism 1), it is equal to additional axis.)         Element 1:         Translation amount of X axis direction[mm]         Element 2:         Translation amount of Y axis direction[mm]         Element 3:         Translation amount of Z axis direction[mm]	Factory setting 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00, 0.00
				Element 4: Rotation amount about X axis [deg] Element 5: Rotation amount about Y axis [deg] Element 6: Rotation amount about Z axis [deg]	

### 6.2 Base coordinate cooperative control

### 6.2.1 Overview

You can move robot base coordinate by using additional axis(traveling axis).

If you move traveling axis on which robot rides, robot moves. In that case, if the origin of the base coordinate system of robot is on the traveling axis, the base coordinates will also draw a similar trajectry with the movement of the traveling axis. In this way, it becomes possible to move the base coordinates of robot attached to the additional axis.

The example of moving robot base coordinate is shown by Figure 6-2.



Figure 6-2 Move image of base coordinate

Next, consider the case that the target position is outside the movement range for the robot alone as shown in Figure 6-3.



Position P2 is outside the movement range for the robot alone.

Figure 6-3 Move image of robot alone

When the target position is set outside the movement range of the robot, robot can move to a position where the robot alone can not move by enlarging movement range to move the robot and the additional axis simultaneously.

Coordination move with additional axis is shown by Figure 6-4.

Enlarge movement area by moving robot and base coordinate.



Figure 6-4 Move image of coordination with additional axis

In additon, for a work of complicated shape with large size which was difficult with conventional interpolation operation, it is possible to operate by executing a spline interpolation command in coordination control of base coordinate.



Figure 6-5 Motion image of spline interpolation by cooperation with additional axis

### 6.2.2 System configration

### 6.2.2.1. Customer preparation equipment

The following table shows the equipment that customers need to prepare, which is necessary for the base coordinate coordinated control system.

Equipment name	Format	Quantity	Remarks
Servo amplifier, servomotor,	Refer to remarks		Refer to "Instruction Manual for
options, peripheral device		-	Servo Amplifier and Servomotor".
Battery	MR-BAT6V1SET	Amplifior	The battery case (MR-BT6VCASE)
(For absolute position		number	and the battery (MR-BAT6V1) are
detection system)		number	necessary when using MR-J4W□-B.
Servo support software	SW1DNC-MRC2-E		
(MR configurator2)			
(For setup the parameter of		1	
servo amplifier and the graph			
indication, etc.)			
Communication cable	MR-J3USBCBL3M		
(Communication cable			
between personal computer		1	
and servo amplifier for setup			
software)			
SSCNET III cable	MR-J3BUSLIM etc	Amplifier	
	( inside cable length)	number	
Travel axis unit	—	1	
RT ToolBox3	3F-14C-WINE/		For details on the specifications of the
	3F-15C-WINE/	1	personal computer,
	3F-16D-WINE	I	please refer to "RT ToolBox 3
			instruction manual".

Table 6-3 The list of customer preparation equipment.

### 6.2.2.2. Example of system configration



Example of base coordinate cooperative controlsystem is below.

Figure 6-6 Example of system configuration of base coordinate cooperative control.

\* For details of connection method, refer to Chapter 5 of "Additional axis function instruction manual (BFP-A3504)".

### 6.2.3 Specification

### (1) Basic specification

Basic function is below.

Table 6-4 Basic specification of base coordinate corporative control.

lte	m	Specification					
Usable robot		Vertical Multiple-joir	nt roobts, Horizontal multiple-joint robots				
Usable robot la	anguage	MELFA-BASIC VI					
		• State variable	T	<b>D</b> >			
		Variable Name	Explanation	Page			
		M_BsCoopMd	Setting of base coordinate cooperative	6-93			
			controlot spline interporation.				
D. C. Han of he		P_BSCacurr	Current base coordinate	6-93			
Definition of da	ise coordinate	If the function is va	alid, set base coordinate by the parameter of	escribed in			
		"Attachment of pase	e coordinate".	hann data			
Attechmont	Llaabla	If the function is inve	alld, set base coordinate by the conventional	Dase data.			
Attachment	Usable		Ch base coordinate to robot additional axis				
OI Dase	mechanisms	(/ axis ui o axis)	evic is useble. (Potation avis is not allowed)				
Coordinate	Attachmont	Cot the attach avie	AXIS IS USADIE. (RUIALIULI AXIS IS TUL ALLOWED)				
	method	Set the attach axis	by Using parameter of boothie.				
	Attachment	Set the attach posit	tion and posture by using parameter of BSCA!	IR			
	position						
Move base coo	ordinate	You can move only	base coordinate of robot (mechanism 1).				
		You can move bas	se coordinate by jog operation, joint interpola	ation, linear			
		interpolation, circula	ar interpolation, spline interpolation.				
Operation met	nod of	Synchronous mov	vement mode(Initial state at power on)				
additional axis		The additional axi	is moves from the start point to the en-	d point of			
		interpolation.					
		* Additional axis don't move in the case of circular interpolation or spline					
		interpolation.					
		• Relative movement mode					
		Assign one of the	X / Y / Z axis motion in spline interpolar	tion to the			
		additional axis. The relative movement amount from the start point in the					
		and a sifile of a vie alive of	specified axis direction is operated by the additional axis and after that, the				
		specified axis direc	tion is operated by the additional axis and an	ter that, the			
		specified axis direc robot moves to corr	tion is operated by the additional axis and atilities pensate for the remaining amount of movement of movement of a price or additional axis which is not	er that, the ent.			
		specified axis direc robot moves to com * If two additiona	tion is operated by the additional axis and atimpensate for the remaining amount of movemers are exist, additional axis which is not operate	ter that, the ent. t used for			

### (2) Restrictions

Restriction of this function is below.

Table 6-5 Restrictions of base c	coordinate coo	perative control
----------------------------------	----------------	------------------

Rest	rictions	Contents	
Interpolation process	sing	It is possible to use Mov, Mvs, Mvr, Mvr2, Mvr3, Mva	
		command, Spline interpolation.	
Peculiar point transit	interpolation.	If the additional axis moves, this function cannot be executed.	
Interporation of Ex-T	control	(Error L2661 (Interpolation cannot be executed) is occurred)	
		* If the additional axis don't move, it is possible to execute.	
Circular interpolation	(Mvc, EMvc)	It does not move in the additional axis.	
Ex-T spline interpola	tion		
Acceleration/deceler	ation processing	Optimum acceleration / deceleration is unavailable.	
		The robot moves with a fixed acceleration / deceleration.	
		(Oadl On command is ignored.)	
Combined use with	Tracking function	Cannot be used together. Traking function takes priority.	
other function		(Error L2661 (Cannot be used (base coop)) is occurred.)	
	Synchronous control	Cannot be used together. Synchronous control of additional	
	of additional axis.	axis takes priority.	
		(Error L2661 (Cannot be used (base coop)) is occurred.)	
	Jrc command	In the case of additional axis which is the target of base	
		coordinatecooperative control, this command cannot be used.	
		(Error L2661 (Jrc cannot be executed) is occurred.)	
	Interference	Cannot be used together. Interference avoidance function	
	avoidance function	takes priority.	
		(Error L2661 (Cannot be used (base coop)) is occurred.)	
Change setting of ba	se coordinate	The value that is calculated by base coordinate cooperative	
		control is used as base data of the robot.	
		* Traditional base setting such as base command and	
		parameter MEXTL, MEXBSNO etc cannot be used.	
3D display of RT Too	olBox3	Operation by base coordinate cooperative control is not	
		displayed at 3D monitor of RT ToolBox 3.	
The setting of Horizontal type (4 axis),		Base coordinate cooperative control can be used only when	
Ceiling type, Vertical type (5 axis) robot		the installation plane of the robot is parallel to the world	
		coordinate system XY plane.	
PtoJ()/JtoP()		Execute coordinate change by reflecting the settings of the	
		base coordinate cooperative control.	
		If there is no additional axis data in the argument, calculate the	
		additional axis value as 0.	

Points of attention

- Before enabling the base coordinate coordinated control with the parameter BSSYNC, it is necessary to complete the origin setting of the robot and additional axis. If base coordinate coordination control is enabled with the origin setting not completed, error L2660 (Origin unsetting (base coop)) will occur at power on, base coordinate cooperative control will not function.
- When the base coordinate cooperative control is functioning, if you reset the additional axis to which the base coordinate is attached, the error H2663 (Origin data was changed) will be generated. In that case, turn the power of the robot controller again and reset the error.
- It can not be used while switching base coordinate cooperative control on / off.
- The base data of the robot is calculated using the position data of the additional axis. If the position of the
  additional axis is not registered in the teaching data, base data is calculated using the position of the
  additional axis when using the teaching data.
  - Behavior of jog movement (R56TB, RT ToolBox3) Joint jog:

When additional axis is operated, each joint angle of the robot is held and operated. The current position of Cartesian coordinates changes according to the motion of the additional axis.

Other jogs:

When the additional axis is operated, the current position of rectangular coordinates is held and operated. Although the position of the control point of the robot does not change, the joint angle of the robot changes according to the motion of the additional axis.

The additional axis jog of R32TB is the operation of the above joint jog.

### 6.2.4 Operation procedure



### 6.2.5 Parameter setting

The parameter list which is used is below.

Parameter	Parameter name	Element number	Explanation of contents	Factory setting
Base coordinate synchronization setting	BSSYNC	Integer 2	Enable or disable base coordinate cooperative control, and specify the additional axis to which base coordinate is attached.	0, 1
			Element1 : Enable or disable base coordinate cooperative control. 0: Disable 1: Enable Element 2: specify the additional axis to which base coordinate is attached. 1: L1(J7)axis 2: L2(J8)axis	
The position and posture of attachment of base	BSCALIB	Integer 6	Position relationship setting of base coordinate and additional axis coordinate.	0.0, 0.0, 0.0, 0.0, 0.0, 0.0
coordinate			offset in the X axis direction from the origin of the axis mechanical interface coordinate system [mm]	
			Element 2: Base coordinate mounting position offset in the Y axis direction from the origin of the axis mechanical interface coordinate system [mm]	
			Element 3: Base coordinate mounting position offset in the Z axis direction from the origin of the axis mechanical interface coordinate system [mm]	
			Element 4: Base coordinate mounting posture offset around X axis of mechanical interface coordinate system [deg]	
			Element 5: Base coordinate mounting posture offset around Y axis of mechanical interface coordinate system [deg]	
			Element 6: Base coordinate mounting posture offset around Z axis of mechanical interface coordinate system [deg]	

Table 6-6 The list of parameter of base coordinate cooperative control

### 6. 2. 6 Creatinn of robot program

In this chapter, robot program language MELFA-BASIC VI which is used in this function is explained.

### 6.2.6.1. The list of robot status variable.

The list of robot status variable related to this function is below.

Table 6-7 Th	e list of robot	status variable

Variable name	Number of array	Function	Attribute	Data type	
M_BsCoopMd	-	Enable the base coordinate cooperative control by spline	R/W	Integer	
		interpolation.			
P_BsCdCurr	-	Get the current base coordinate.	R	Position	
(*1) Dr Only read is passible D/Wr Dead and write is passible					

(\*1) R: Only read is possible. R/W: Read and write is possible.

### 6.2.6.2. Detail explanation of robot(system) status variable

Detail of status variable of this function is below.

The meanings of the items used to explain the status variables are as follows.

[Function]	: This indicates a function of a variable.
【Format】	: This indicates how to enter arguments of valiable.
	[] means that arguments can be omitted. System status variables can be
	used in conditional expressions, as well as reference and assignment
	statements are given to make the description simple.
[Terminology]	: This indicates the meaning and range of an argument.
【Reference program】	: An example program using variables is shown.
[Explanation]	: This indicates detailed functions and precautions.

### <u>M\_BsCoopMd</u>

### [Function]

When the coordinated control for base coordinate is effective, specify and refer to the direction to which additional axis moves at spilne interpolation operation.

### [Format]

M\_BsCoopMd = <Coordinate axis number> <Numeric variable> = M\_BsCoopMd

[Terminology]

<coordinate axis="" number=""> operation.</coordinate>	Specify	the	coordinate	axis	direction	thet	decides	the	additional	axis
	Setting range:0 to 3 0(Not assigned),1=(X axis direction),2=(Y axis direction)									
	3=(Z ax	is dir	ection)							

<Numeric variable> Specify the numerical variable of the assignment target.

[Reference program]

- 1 M\_BsCoopMd = 2 ' Assign Y axis direction to additional axis at spline interpolation operation.
  - 2 MvSpl 1,50,100 ' Execute the spline interpolation.

[Explanation]

(1) When the coordinated control for base coordinate is effective, specify the additional axis direction at slpine interpolation.

- (2) The initial state immediately after turning on the power supply is 0.
- (3) This value returns to 0 at the end of main program and by program reset operation.
- (4) When specify the direction in which the additional axis can not move (for example, specify the X axis with respect to the additional axis that can move in the Y axis direction), the additional axis will not move.
- (5) When you refer to or set this status variable, if the coordinated control for base coordinate is disable (MELFA Smart Plus card is not installed,parameter "SMART+1" is not set correctly, parameter "BSSYNC" is not set correctly), error L3781 (MELFA Smart Plus command can not be used.) occurs.
- (6) It is a status variable dedicated to mechanism 1 (Robot), and control privilege of mechanism 1 is necessary when setting (reference is unnecessary).

### P\_BsCdCurr

[Function]

Refer to current robot base coordinate data.

### [Format]

<Position variable> = P\_BsCdCurr

[Terminology]

<Position variable>

Specify the position variable of the assignment target.

[Reference program]

1 P1 = P\_BsCdCurr 'Assign the current robot base coordinate data to P1.

[Explanation]

- (1) Refer to the current position at base coordinate origin of robot (mechanism 1).
- (2) When you refer to or set this status variable, if the coordinated control for base coordinate is disable (MELFA Smart Plus card is not installed,parameter "SMART+1" is not set correctly, parameter "BSSYNC" is not set correctly), error L3781 (MELFA Smart Plus command can not be used.) occurs.

### 6.3 Additional axis tracking

### 6.3.1 Specification

With this function, the robot can execute another interpolation operation following the work attached to the user mechanisms.

Figure 6 6 shows an example of how the robot follows the workpiece and traces the outline of the workpiece.



Figure 6-7 Move image of additional axis tracking.

### 6.3.2 System configuration

### 6.3.2.1. Customer preparation equipment

The following table shows the equipment that customers need to prepare, which is necessary for the additional axis tracking system.

Equipment name	Format	Quantity	Remarks
Servo amplifier, servomotor, options, peripheral device	Refer to remarks	-	Refer to "Instruction Manual for Servo Amplifier and Servomotor".
Battery (For absolute position detection system)	MR-BAT6V1SET	Amplifier number	The battery case (MR-BT6VCASE) and the battery (MR-BAT6V1) are necessary when using MR-J4W□-B.
Servo support software (MR configurator2) (For setup the parameter of servo amplifier and the graph indication, etc.)	SW1DNC-MRC2-E	1	
Communication cable (Communication cable between personal computer and servo amplifier for setup software)	MR-J3USBCBL3M	1	
SSCNET III cable	MR-J3BUSDM etc (Dinside cable length)	Amplifier number	
Travel axis unit		1	
Hand	-	(1)	
Hand sensor	-	(1)	Used to confirm that workpieces are gripped correctly. Provide as necessary.
Solenoid valve set Hand input cable	Refer to remarks	(1)	Different models are used depending on the robot used. Check the robot version and provide as necessary.
Calibration jig	-	(1)	This is a jig with a sharp tip that is attached to the mechanical interface of the robot arm and used for calibration tasks. It is recommended to use the jig if high precision is required.
RT ToolBox3	3F-14C-WINE/ 3F-15C-WINE/ 3F-16D-WINE	1	For details on the specifications of the personal computer, please refer to "RT ToolBox 3 instruction manual".

Table 6-8 The list of customer preparation equipme	ent
--	-----

### 6.3.2.2. Example of system configuration

Example of additional axis tracking system is below.



Figure 6-8 Example of additional axis tracking system configuration

\* For details of connection method, refer to Chapter 5 of "Additional axis function instruction manual (BFP-A3504)".

### 6.3.3 Specification

### (1) Basic specification

Basic function is below.

Item		Specification					
Usable robot		Vertical Multiple-joint roobts, Horizontal multiple-joint robots					
Usable robot language		MELFA-BASIC VI					
		Statue veriable					
		Variable	Variable Explanation Page				
		name	Explanation	Faye			
		M_AxTrkWkNo	Workpiece number used by additional	6-105			
			axis tracking.	0.400			
		P_WkCalib	coordinate attached.	6-106			
		P_TrkPAcl	Additional axis tracking acceleration acceadjustment coefficient.	6-107			
		P_TrkPDcl	Additional axis tracking deceleration acceadjustment coefficient.	6-107			
		P_TrkBase	Workpiece reference position used by additional axis tracking.	6-108			
		P_TrkTarget	Workpiece current position used by additional axis tracking.	6-109			
		Command					
		Command	Explanation	Page			
		name					
		<u>Trk</u>	Enable additional axis tracking.	6-111			
Attachment of workpiece	Usable	J1/J2/J3 axis of u	iser mechanisms.				
coordinate	Attach method	od For each workpiece number, set the axis to which workpiece coc attached. • Parameter "WK1SYNC" to "WK8SYNC"					
Attach position       Setting of mounting position and posture is below.         ·       Status variable "P_WkCalib"         ·       Parameter "WK1CALIB"to "WK8CALIB"							
Workpiece move		In the case of user mechanisms, it is possible to move workpiece.					
Follow the workpiece		* User mechanisms cannot be used.					
Movement area check		In the case of workpiece coordinate following control, the movement					
at the following of the workpiece.		area at command execution is not checked.					

### Table 6-9 Basic specification of additional axis tracking

(2) Restrictions Restriction of this function is below.

Table 6-10 Restrictions	s of additional	axis tracking
-------------------------	-----------------	---------------

Restrictions		Contents
Interporation processing		Mov, Mvs, Mvr, Mvr2, Mvr3, Mvc command is available.
		interpolation is unavailable.
Singular point passage	Э	Unavailable.
Optimum acceleration	/ deceleration	Optimum acceleration / decelerationis unavailable.
		* If the Optimum acceleration / deceleration is effective, robot moves by a fixed acceleration / deceleration.
Combined usewith other functions	Tracking function (Tracking using external encoder)	Cannot be used together. Switch with the parameter "TRMODE". TRMODE = 1: Conveyor tracking TRMODE = 2: Additional axis tracking
	Additional axis synchronization control	Cannot be used together. Additional axis synchronization control takes precedence. When power is ON, error L2661 (Cannot be used (axis trk)) is occurred.
Change setting of work		If you try to change the mounting position of workpiece that is being tracked with the parameter "WKnCALIB" or the state variable P_WkCalib while additional axis tracking is in effect (after execution of Trk On command), error L2662 (Cannot be used (axis trk)) is occurred.
Usable user mechanisms		It can be used only for linear movement 1 axis.
#### 6.3.4 Operation procedure



# 6.3.5 Parameter setting

The parameter which is used is below.

Table C 44	The list of		a shalltha a a h	and a two alities as
1 able 6-11	I ne list of	parameter of	additional	axis tracking

Parameter	Parameter name	Element number	Content explanation	Factory setting
Workpiece synchronization settings	WKnSYNC (n = 1~8)	Integer 2	Set the mechanism number and axis number attached to workpiece.	0, 1
Settings			Element1:mechanism number	
			0: Disable	
			2: mechanism 2 3: mechanism 3	
			Element2: Axis number	
			1/2/3: 1/2/3 axis of corresponding	
Workpiece	WKnCALIB	Real	Set the position relationship of workpiece and	0.0,
mounting	(n = 1∼8)	number 6	coordinate ofattached axis.	0.0,
position, posture			Element 1. Mounting position offset in the X axis	0.0, 0.0.
Gala			direction from the origin of the	0.0,
			Element 2: Mounting position offset in the Y axis	0.0
			direction from the origin of the	
			Element 3: Mounting position offset in the Z axis	
			direction from the origin of the	
			mounting axis. [mm]	
			axis of the munting axis. [deg].	
			Element 5: Mounting posture offset around Y	
			axis of thr mounting axis. [deg].	
			axis of the mounting axis. [deg].	
			(The direction of rotation is the same as the	
Tracking mode	TRMODE	Integer 1	coordinate system of the robot.)	0
Tracking mode	TRIODE	Integer	tracking.	0
			0: Tracking disable	
			1: External encoder tracking	
Tracking	TRPACI	Real	2: Additional axis tracking	1010
Acceleration <sup>(*1)</sup>	HU / OL	number 8	Acceleration during execution of tracking	1.0, 1.0,
			movement.	1.0, 1.0,
Tracking	TRPDCL	Real	Tracking deceleration.	1.0, 1.0,
Deceleration <sup>(*1)</sup>		number 8	Deceleration during execution of tracking	1.0, 1.0,
			movement.	1.0, 1.0, 1.0, 1.0, 1.0, 1.0, 1.0
Number of multi	AXUNUM	Integer 1	The number of multi-mechanism to use.	0
mechanisms used <sup>(*2)</sup>			(The robot and the mechanism of mechanism number 1 are exclude.)	
Mechanism No.	AXMENO	Integer 16	Input the mechanism No. to the element which	0, 0, 0, 0,
designation <sup>(2)</sup>			corresponds to the servo control axis No. used and be sure to set "0" for the axis not used	0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
				0, 0, 0, 0

Parameter	Parameter name	Element	Content explanation	Factory setting
Setting axis No. (*2)	AXJNO	Integer 16	Designate what number of the axis of the robot arm is used for the additional axis.	0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0
Unit sstem <sup>(*2)</sup>	AXUNT	Integer 16	Unit system of additional axis	0, 0, 0, 0, 0,
			0: Angle[deg] 1: Length[mm] 2: Length[mm] Using linear servo	0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0 ,0, 0
Rotate	AXSPOL	Integer 16	Set the rotation direction of the motor.	0, 0, 0, 0,
direction			0: Forward(CCW) 1: Reverse(CW)	0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0, 0 ,0, 0
			The direction of rotation of the servomotor is as follows.	
			Forward rotation (CCW)	
			Reverse rotation (CW)	
Acceleration time <sup>(*2)</sup>	AXACC	Real numbe 16	Acceleration time for additional axis [sec].	0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20
	AXDEC	Real	Deceleration time for additional axis [sec].	0.20, 0.20,
time <sup>(2)</sup>		number 16		0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20, 0.20,
Total speed ratio numerator <sup>(*2)</sup>	AXGRTN	Integer 16	Total speed ratio numerator of additional axis	1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1, 1
Total speed ratio	AXGRTD	Integer 16	Total speed ratio denominator of additional axis	10, 10,
denominator <sup>(2)</sup>				10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10, 10,
				10, 10,
				10, 10, 10, 10
				10, 10, 10,
				10, 10

	Parameter	Flement		Factory
Parameter	name	number	Content explanation	setting
Pated speed <sup>(*2)</sup>		Integer 16	Pated speed (Unit: r/min ) of motor	2000 2000
Naleu speeu		integer to	or	2000, 2000, 2000, 2000
			Di Ratad spood (Lipit: mm/s.) of lipoar mater	2000, 2000, 2000, 2000
			Rated speed (Onit. min/s.) of inteal motor	2000, 2000, 2000, 2000
				2000, 2000, 2000, 2000
				2000, 2000, 2000, 2000
				2000, 2000, 2000, 2000
				2000, 2000, 2000, 2000
Movimum		Integer 16	Maximum apaged (Linit: r/min.) of motor	2000, 2000
	ANJIVIN	integer to	or	3000, 3000, 3000, 3000, 3000
speed -/			OI Maximum apoad (Unit: mm/a) of linear mater	3000, 3000, 3000, 3000
			Maximum speed (Onit. min/s.) of inteal motor	3000, 3000, 3000, 3000
				3000, 3000, 3000, 3000
				3000, 3000,
				3000, 3000,
				3000, 3000,
E		1.1	E conteners de l'activitée	3000, 3000
Encoder	AXENCR	Integer 16	Encoder resolution of motor	4194304,
resolution <sup>(2)</sup>			(Unit: pulse/rev)	4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304,
				4194304
JOG Smoothing	AXJOGTS	Real	If it vibrates at JOG, set a larger value.	150.00,
time constant(*2)		numbe 16	(Unit: ms)	150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00,
				150.00

Parameter	Parameter name	Element number	Content explanation	Factory setting
Joint movement range <sup>(*2)</sup>	MEJAR	Real numbe 16	<ul> <li>Set the overrun limit value for the joint coordinate system.</li> <li>Sets the movement range for each axis.</li> <li>Expanding of the movement range is not recommended, since there is possibility that the robot may strike the mechanical stopper.</li> <li>Note) Please note that the joint movement range of J1 axis cannot be changed after the J1 axis offset angle (J10FFSET) is specified in vertical 5-axis type robot.</li> <li>Set the minus and plus directions.</li> <li>(-J1,+J1,-J2,+J2,,J8,+J8)</li> </ul>	Setting value for each mechanism
User-designated origin <sup>(*2)</sup>	USERORG	Real numbe 8	Unit:deg Designate the user-designated origin position. This normally does not need to be set. (J1,J2,J3,J4,J5,J6,J7,J8) Unit:deg	$\begin{array}{c} 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00,\\ 0.00,\ 0.00\end{array}$

\*1: For details of parameters, refer to chapter 18.1 "List of Parameters Related to Tracking" of "Tracking Function Instruction Manual (BFP-A3520)".

\*2: For details of parameters, refer to chapter 7.1 "Description of parameters" of "ADDITIONAL AXIS FUNCTION INSTRUCTION MANUAL (BFP-A3504)".

# 6. 3. 6 Creation of robot program

In this chapter, robot program language MELFA-BASIC VI which is used in this function is explained.

### 6.3.6.1. The list of robot status variable

The list of status variable related to this function is below.

Variable name	Number of array	Function	Attribute	Data type
M_AxTrkWkN o	-	Specify and refer to the workpiece which is the target of the additional axis tracking.	R/W	Interger
P_WkCalib	1	Specify and refer to offset amount of axis to which work coordinate is attached.	R/W	Position
P_TrkPAcl	1	Specify the additional axis tracking acceleration adjustment coefficient.	R/W	Position
P_TrkPDcl	1	Specify the additional axis tracking deceleration adjustment coefficient.	R/W	Position
P_TrkBase	1	Refer to the workpiece reference position which is the target Of the additional axis tracking.	R/W	Position
P_TrkTarget	-	Refer to the workpiece current position which is the target of the additional axis tracking.	R	Position

#### Table 6-12 The list of robot status variable

(\*1) R···Only read is possible. R/W···Read and write is possible.

### 6.3.6.2. Detail explanation of robot status variable

Detail of status variable of this function is below.

The meanings of the items used to explain the status variables are as follows.

[Function]	: This indicates a function of a variable.
[Format]	: This indicates how to enter arguments of valiable.
	[] means that arguments can be omitted. System status variables can be used in conditional expressions, as well as reference and assignment statements. In the format example, only reference and assignment statements are given to make the description simple.
【Terminology】	: This indicates the meaning and range of an argument.
【Reference program】	: An example program using variables is shown.
[Explanation]	: This indicates detailed functions and precautions.

# M\_AxTrkWkNo

#### [Function]

Specify and refer to the Workpiece number used by additional axs tracking.

#### [Format]

M_AxTrkWkNo= < Workpiece number >	
<position variable=""> = M_AxTrkWkNo</position>	

#### [Terminology]

<workpiece number=""></workpiece>	Specify the target work number. Setting range: $0 \sim 8$
<position variable=""></position>	Specify the position variable to assign.

[Reference program]

1 M_AxTrkWkNo = 1	Set the workpiece used by additional axis tracking 1.
-------------------	---

[Explanation]

- (1) Execute additional axis tracking by using workpiece specified at <workpiece number>.
- (2) Initial value is 0(Not set).
- (3) The value assigned to the status variable is retained until the power is turned off.
- (4) Attempting to change will result in error L2662 (Work setting cannot be changed).
- (5) It is impossible to change workpiece number while additional axis tracking is in effect. If you try tochange, error L2662\_00000 occurs.
- (6) When you refer to or set this status variable, if the additional axis tracking is disable (MELFA Smart Plus card is not installed, parameter "SMART+1" is not set correctly, parameter "TRMODE" is not set correctly), error L3781 (MELFA Smart Plus command can not be used.) occurs.

# P\_WkCalib

#### [Function]

Specify and refer to the position relationship of workpiece reference point and mounting target axis coordinate.

#### [Format]

P_WkCalib [( <workpiece number="">)] = &lt; Position variable 1&gt;</workpiece>	
<position 2="" variable=""> = P_WkCalib [(<workpiece number="">)]</workpiece></position>	

[Τ	er	n	nir	nol	0	gy】	

<workpiece number=""></workpiece>	Specify the target workpiece number. Setting range: 1 to 8, When it is ommited, it will be treated as 1 (0 is also treated as omission.) Setting value 1 to 8 correspond to parameter WK1CALIB to WK8CALIB.
<position variable1=""></position>	Specify the offset amount from mechanical interface of axis to which workpiece attached.
< Position variable2>	Specify the position variable to assign.
Reference program]	

#### 1 P\_WkCalib(1) = P1 'The mounting offset of workpiece No. 1 is set as P1.

#### [Explanation]

ľ

(1) Specify and refer to the position relationship of workpiece reference point which is specified by <Workpiece number> and mechanical interface coordinate origin of mounting target axis. When placing a workpiece reference point on the direct drive axis as below, specify the amount of change in position and posture from the mechanical interface coordinate system origin to the workpiece reference point as the offset amount.



- (2) Initial value is set value of parameter "WK1CALIB" ~ "WK8CALIB"
- (3) When you reset the program, it becomes the setting value of the corresponding parameter "WKnCALIB".
- (4) When the variable value is changed, it is not reflected to the parameter "WK1CALIB" to "WK8CALIB". The value assigned to the status variable is retained until the power is turned off.
- (5) The value assigned to the status variable is held until the power is turned off.
- (6) When the additional axis tracking is effective, you can not change workpiece mounting position.
- If you ttry to change, error L2662 (Work setting cannot be changed) occurs.
- (7) When you refer to or set this status variable, if the additional axis tracking is disable (MELFA Smart Plus card is not installed, parameter "SMART+1" is not set correctly, parameter "TRMODE" is not set correctly), error L3781 (MELFA Smart Plus command can not be used.) occurs.

# P\_TrkPAcl / P\_TrkPDcl

#### [Function]

Change the tracking acceleration/deceleration coefficient of the parameter "TRPACL/TRPDCL".

(F	ormat]	
<b>V</b> 1	uniul	

P_TrkPAcl( <condition number="">) = <position data=""></position></condition>
<position variables=""> = P_TrkPAcl(<condition number="">)</condition></position>
P_TrkPDcl( <condition number="">) = <position data=""></position></condition>
<position variables=""> = P_TrkPDcl(<condition number="">)</condition></position>

#### [Terminology]

<condition number=""></condition>	Specify the condition number corresponding to the tracking. Setting range: 1 to 8
<position data=""></position>	Specify the tracking acceleration/deceleration coefficient. Setting range: For each component, 0.10 to 10.0

[Reference program]

- - ' Specify the tracking deceleration coefficient.

#### [Explanation]

- (1) Specify the acceleration/deceleration coefficient of the additional axis tracking.
- (2) You can confirm the tracking acceleration/ deceleration coefficient by referencing "P\_TrkPAcl/P\_TrkPDcl".
- (3) You can omit the step to specify <Condition number>.When it is omitted, condition number will be treated as "1."
- (4) Number which you can enter to specify <Condition number> is an integer in the range of "1" to "8." Entering anything else causes L3110 (Argument value range over) error to occur.

# P\_TrkBase

#### [Function]

Specify and refer to the origin of the workpiece to be followed by additional axis tracking. The robot moves to the relative position correspond to this reference point by the movement instruction during the additional axis tracking

#### [Format]

P\_TrkBase(<Condition number>) = <Position data> <Position variable> = P\_TrkBase(<Condition number>)

#### [Terminology]

< Condition number >	Specify the condition number corresponding to the tracking. Setting range:1 to 8
< Position data >	Specify the base position of the tracking.
< Position variables >	Return the base coordinates of the specified tracking.
Reference program]	

1 P_TrkBase = PTBASE	Specify the origin of the workpiece used	d by additional axis tracking.

#### [Explanation]

ľ

- (1) Specify the workpiece coordinate system origin used by additional axis tracking.
- (2) You can confirm the workpiece coordinate system origin by referencing "P\_TrkBase".
- (3) You can omit the step to specify <Condition number>.When it is omitted, condition number will be treated as "1."
- (4) Number which you can enter to specify <Condition number> is an integer in the range of "1" to "8." Entering anything else causes L3110 (Argument value range over) error to occur.

# P\_TrkTarget

#### [Function]

Refer to the workpiece current position to be followed by additional axis tracking.

#### [Format]

<Position variables> = P\_TrkTarget

#### [Terminology]

<Position variables>

Specifies the position variable to assign.

#### [Reference program]

1 PWrkNow = P\_TrkTarget ' Specify the workpiece current position to be followed by additional axis tracking.

#### [Explanation]

- (1) Refer to the workpiece current position to be followed by additional axis tracking.
- (2) If you execute the writing to "M\_TrkTarget", L3210 (This variable is write protected) error occurs.

# 6.3.6.3. The list of command

The list of command related to this function is shown below.

	Table	6-13	The	list of	command
--	-------	------	-----	---------	---------

Command name	Function
Trk	Enable or disable additional axis tracking function.

# 6.3.6.4. Detail explanation of robot(system) status variable

Detail of status variable of this function is below.

The meanings of the items used to explain the state variables are as follows.

[Function]	: This indicates a function of a command word.
[Format]	: This indicates how to enter arguments of the command word.
	The aurgument is shown in <>.
	[] indicates that the argument can be omitted.
[Terminology]	: This indicates the meaning and range of an argument.
[Reference program	An example program using variables is shown.
[Explanation]	: This indicates detailed functions and precautions.

# <u>Trk</u>

#### [Function]

After Trk ON is executed, the robot goes into the tracking mode and operates while following the conveyer operation until Trk OFF is executed.

#### [Format]

Trk On [, <Measurement position data> [, [<Encorder data>][,[<Reference position data>][,[<Encorder logic number>]]]]] Trk Off

#### [Terminology]

#### [Reference program]

1	P_TrBase P0	' Specify the workpiece coordinate origin at the teaching position.
2	Trk On	'Enable additional tracking.
3	Mvs P2	' Execute the interpolation operation following workpiece attached to user mechanisms.
4	Trk Off	' End the tracking operation.

#### [Explanation]

(1) If additional axis tracking is used (parameter TRMODE is "2"), arguments after Trk On can not be specified.

# 6.3.7 Installation of a sample program

This chapter explains the structure of the sample robot programs.

Poogram structures are shown in "Table 6-14 The list of sample programs".

#### Table 6-14 The list of sample programs

Prgram name	Description	Explanation
A1	Program for calibration between robot and base	This program matches the coordinate systems of robot and user mechanisms.
B1	Program for workpiece position registration of user mechanisms	This program registers the start end positions of work.
C1	Program for work base position registration	This program registers the reference position of the workpieces where the robot works.
1	Robot operation program	This program operates the robot while following workpieces mounted on the user mechanisms.
СМ1	User mechanisms monitoring program	This program moves user mechanisms.

### 6.3.8 Calibration of Robot and Base Coordinate Systems ("A1" program)

This chapter explains the tasks carried out by using "A1" program.

Calibration of robot and base coordinate systems refers to determining the origin position of user mechanisms in the robot coordinate system.

"A1" program performs specified tasks and automatically calculates the origin position of user mechanisms in the robot coordinate system.

The procedures of operations specified by "A1" program and items to be confirmed after the operations are explained below.

Please refer to "Detailed Explanations of Functions and Operations" for the steps involved in each operation.

#### 6.3.8.1. **Operation procedure**

- Set the controller mode to "MANUAL". Set the T/B to "ENABLE". (1)
- (2) Press one of the keys (example, [EXE] key) while the <TITLE> screen is displayed. The <MENU> screen will appear.



Select "1. FILE /EDIT" screen on the <MENU> screen. (3)



(4) Press the arrow key, combine the cursor with the program name "A1" and press the [EXE] key. Display the <program edit> screen.



(5) Press the [FUNCTION] key, and change the function display.



(6) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(1) Input a mechanism number ... "is displayed. Execute work according to the comment in the robot program.



1

2

3

Specify the mechanism number.

If you want to change the mechanism number, please edit the program as follows.

(a) Display the following command.

<pre><program> A1</program></pre>	
5 '# COPYRIGHT	: MIT
6 '####################################	
7 '(1)Input a mechanism numbe	er to
8 MMechNo = 2	
EDIT DELETE 123 INSERT	TFACH
120 Allocation	

(b) Press the [F1] (EDIT) key and specify the mechanism number in the variable "MMechNo". Example) When "3" is specified as the mechanism number.



(c) Press the [EXE] key and the change is determined.



(7) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(2) Input a parameter name ... "is displayed.



Specify the parameter name. If you want to change the parameter name, please edit the program as follows. (a) Display the following command.



(b) Press the [F1] (EDIT) key and specify the mechanism number in the variable "CPrmName\$". Example) When "BSWOFTS3" is specified as the parameter name.



◆	<program> A1 Edit 10 CPrmName\$ = "BSWOFST3"</program>
	EDIT DELETE 123 INSERT TEACH

(c) Press the [EXE] key and the change is determined.



(8) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(3) Move the robot to ... "is displayed.



Set the the origin of the user mechanism in the robot coordinate system.



(9) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(4) Move the robot to ... "is displayed.



Set a point on the X axis of the user mechanism origin in the robot coordinate system.



(10) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(5) Move the robot to ... "is displayed.



Set a point in the positive Y Direction of the X-Y plane of the user mechanism origin in the robot coordinate system.



(11) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(6) Perform step operation ... "is displayed.



Perform step operation until "End".

\* The origin position of the user mechanism in the robot coordinate system is calculated based on this operation.

#### 6.3.8.2. Confirmation after operation

Check the parameter "BSWOFSTn".

\* This value indicates the offset from base coordinate origin of the robot to base coordinate origin of the user mechanism.

#### 6.3.8.3. When multiple user mechanisms are used

Carry out the same operations as above when multiple user mechanisms are used as well, but pay attention to be following points.

Example) When using mechanism 3, J2 axis

- (a) Copy the "A1" program, please create an "A2" program.
- (b) Please change the mechanism number for variable "MMechaNo" in the "A2" program to "3".
- (c) Please change the parameter name for variable "CPrmName\$" in the "A2" program to "BSWOFST2".

# 6.3.9 Resistration of User Mechanism Work Position ("B1" program)

This chapter explains the tasks carried out by using "B1" program.

"B1" program performs specified tasks and registers the work position to be used by the additional axis tracking.

The procedures of operations specified by "B1" program and items to be confirmed after the operations are explained below.

Please refer to "Detailed Explanations of Functions and Operations" for the steps involved in each operation.

#### 6.3.9.1. Operation procedure

- (1) Set the controller mode to "MANUAL". Set the T/B to "ENABLE".
- (2) Press one of the keys (example, [EXE] key) while the <TITLE> screen is displayed. The <MENU> screen will appear.



(3) Select "1. FILE /EDIT" screen on the <MENU> screen.



(4) Press the arrow key, combine the cursor with the program name "B1" and press the [EXE] key. Display the <program edit> screen.



(5) Press the [FUNCTION] key, and change the function display.



(6) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(1) Input a work number ... "is displayed. Execute work according to the comment in the robot program.



Specify the work number.

If you want to change the work number, please edit the program as follows.

(a) Display the following command.



(b) Press the [F1] (EDIT) key and specify the workpiece number in the variable "MWrkNo". Example) When "2" is specified as the work number.



(c) Press the [EXE] key and the change is determined.

<pre><program> B1</program></pre>	
5 ' # COPYRIGHT	: MIT
6 '####################################	#######
7' (1) Input a work number	to th
8 MWrkNo = 2	
EDIT DELETE 123 INSERT	TEACH
120	

(7) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(2) Input a mechanism number ... "is displayed.



(8) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(3) Input an operating speed ... "is displayed.



(9) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(4) Move user mechanisms to ... "is displayed.



<pre><program> B1</program></pre>
11 ' (3) Input an operating speed of
12 MSpd = 300
13' (4) Move user mechanisms to the
14 P_102(MWrkNo) = P_Fbc(MMechNo)
EDIT DELETE 123 INSERT TEACH

Move the user mechanism to the work start position.



(10) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(5) Move user mechanisms to ... "is displayed.



Move the user mechanism to the work end position.



(11) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(6) Perform step operation ... "is displayed.



```
<PROGRAM> B1
17' (6) Perform step operation until
18 P_109(MWrkNo).X = MMechNo
19 P_109(MWrkNo).Y = MSpd
20 End
EDIT DELETE 123 INSERT TEACH
```

#### 6.3.9.2. Confirmation after operation

Check the value of "P\_102()", "P\_103()", "P\_109()" using T/B. Enter the work number in the array element.

- "P\_102()": Start position of the user mechanism
- "P\_103()": End position of the user mechanism

• "P\_109()": Values of variables "MMechaNo" (mechanism number), "MSpd" (speed of the user mechanism) Confirm that the above values are entered.

#### 6.3.9.3. When multiple user mechanisms are used

Carry out the same operations as above when multiple user mechanisms are used as well, but pay attention to be following points.

Example) When using the mechanism 3, work number 5

- (a) Copy the "B1" program, please create an "B2" program.
- (b) Please change the work number for variable "MWrkNo" in the "B2" program to "5".
- (c) Please change the mechanism number for variable "MMechNo" in the "B2" program to "3".

# 6. 3. 10 Work Base Position Registration ("C1" program)

This chapter explains the tasks carried out by using "C1" program.

"C1" Program performs specified tasks and register the work base coordinate.

The procedures of operations specified by "C1" program and items to be confirmed after the operations are explained below.

Please refer to "Detailed Explanations of Functions and Operations" for the steps involved in each operation.

### 6.3.10.1. Operation procedure

Using "C1" program, operate in the following procedures.

- (1) Set the controller mode to "MANUAL". Set the T/B to "ENABLE".
- (2) Press one of the keys (example, [EXE] key) while the <TITLE> screen is displayed. The <MENU> screen will appear.



(3) Select "1. FILE /EDIT" screen on the <MENU > screen.



(4) Press the arrow key, combine the cursor with the program name "C1" and press the [EXE] key. Display the <program edit> screen.



(5) Press the [FUNCTION] key, and change the function display



(6) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(1) Input a work number to the ... "is displayed. Execute work according to the comment in the robot program.



Specify the workpiece number.

If you want to change the workpiece number, please edit the program as follows.

(a) Display the following command.



(b) Press the [F1](FWD) key and specify the workpiece number in the variable "MWrkNo" Example) When "2" is specified as the workpiece number.



(c) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and the change is determined.



(7) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(2) Mov the robot to the origin ... "is displayed. Execute work according to the comment in the robot program.



Move the robot to the origin point position of user mechanism.



(8) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(3)Move the robot to the work ... "is displayed. Execute work according to the comment in the robot program.



Move the robot to the work base coordinate.



(9) Press the [F1] (FWD) key and execute step feed. "(4)Perform step operation until ... "is displayed. Execute work according to the comment in the robot program.



#### 6.3.10.2. **Confirmation after operation**

Confirm the values of "P\_100()" and "P\_101()" using T/B. Enter work numbers in array elements.

"P\_100()": Work base coordinate
"P\_101()": Offset amount of axis to which work coordinate is attached

Check that each of the values above has been entered correctly.

#### 6.3.10.3. When multiple workpieces are used

Carry out the same operations as above when multiple workpieces are used as well, but pay attention to the following points.

Example) When using work number "5",

- (a) Copy the "C1" program, please create a "C2" program.
- (b) Please change the kind number for variable "MWrkNo" in the "C2" program to "5".

# 6. 3. 11 Teaching and Setting of Adjustment Variables ("1" program)

This chapter explains operations required to run "1" program.

In addition, this chapter explains a method to check the operation in the condition that it was designated, and to coordinate again.

# 6.3.11.1. Teaching

The teaching of "Origin point position (position in which system is started)" and "Waiting point position (position in which it is waited that workpiece arrives)") is executed.



Teach the origin position, waiting position and transportation point. The following explains how to perform these operations.

- 1) Open "1" program using T/B.
- 2) Open the [Position data Edit] screen.
- 3) Display "PSave" in order to set the robot origin position when the system is started.
- 4) Move the robot to the origin position and teach it the position.
- 5) Display "PWait" in order to set the waiting position in which it is waited that workpiece arrives.
- 6) Move the robot to the waiting position and teach it the position.
- 7) Display "PSave" at the starting point position on the [Position data Edit] screen. Turn on the servo by gripping the deadman switch.
- 8) Push [F1] (MOVE) and move the robot to the position of "PSave".

<pos></pos>	INT 100%	Psav	ρ	
Ϋ́ΎΎ.		A:+00	00 00	
Ŷ:	-300 00	R: -	+90 00	
7:	+400 00	C: +	180.00	
11:+	0000 00	12:+(		
FI 1 0	00000.00	FI 2.0	00000.000	
	TEAOU	100	D	Need
MUVE	TEACH	123	Prev	Next

9) Move the robot to the position of "PWait" pushing F1 (MOVE).

# 6.3.11.2. Setting of adjustment variables in the program

The following section explains how to set adjustment variables, which are required at transportation, and details about their setting.

Please refer to separate manual "Detailed Explanations of Functions and Operations" for how to set adjustment variables.

Variable name	Explanation	Setting Example
PUp1 PDly1	When the adsorption operation of workpiece, set the offset in the z-axis that the robot works. Offset is the amount of elevation (mm) from the position where workpiece is adsorbed. [*]Since this variable shows the distance in a tool coordinate system, the sign changes depending on a robot model. Set the time to keep following work reference position	When you raise the workpiece 50mm from the adsorption position: (Example) RV series: (X,Y,Z,A,B,C)=(+0,+0,-50,+0,+0,+0) (Example) Other than RV series: (X,Y,Z,A,B,C)=(+0,+0,+50,+0,+0,+0) When tracking time is set to 1 second (X,Y,Z,A,B,C)=(+1,+0,+0,+0,+0,+0)
PPri	<ul> <li>"1" program and "CM1" program are run simultaneously (multitasking). "1" program moves the robot, and "CM1" program observes the sensor. It is possible to specify which program is processed with a higher priority, rather than performing the same amount of processing at the same time.</li> <li>X = Set the line numbers of "1" program to be performed (1 to 31).</li> <li>Y = Set the line numbers of "CM1" program to be performed (1 to 31).</li> </ul>	When you set to run "1" program by one line and run "CM1" program by 10 lines: (X,Y,Z,A,B,C)=(+1,+10,+0,+0,+0,+0)
POffset	When the adsorption position shifts, the gap can be corrected. Set the correction value. [*]The direction of the correction is a direction of the hand coordinate system. Please decide the correction value after changing the job mode to "Tool", pushing the [+X] key and the [+Y] key, and confirming the operation of the robot.	When the deviation to +X direction in hand-coordinate system is 2mm, and deviation to -Y direction in hand-coordinate system is 1mm: (X,Y,Z,A,B,C)=(+2,-1,+0,+0,+0,+0)

# 6.3.11.3. Automatic Operation

This chapter explains how to prepare the robot before starting the system.

- 1) Confirm that there isn't an intervention thing in the robot movement area.
- 2) Set the T/B [ENABLE] switch to "DISABLE"



- 3) Set the controller mode to "AUTOMATIC".
- 4) Use operation panel in RT ToolBox 3, and specify the override to 20% 30%.



5) Press the [Select] button, and select "program 1"



6) Automatic operation will start when the [START] button is pressed.



#### \*Prepare for the unexpected operation of the robot, please can press anytime emergency stop switch of T/B.

- 7) Confirm to be a work that is moved to waiting point position after following the workpiece.
- 8) If you check the operation, press the [STOP] button and stop the robot.



# 

T / B software in a specific version or later, you can be the automatic operation from T / B.

With R32/33T/B software version 1.7 or later, the program's automatic operation can be started from the T/B (With R56/57TB, version 3.0 or later). Please refer to "Detailed Explanations of Functions and Operations" for operation procedures and details.

# 6.3.11.4. Adjustment of operating conditions

In automatic operation, if you want to adjust the vertical movement and adsorption time of the robot arm that was described in "6.3.11.2 Setting of adjustment variables in the program" should be changed in the following procedure.

- (1) Start the "Program monitor" of RT ToolBox3.
- (2) Click the [Add] button and open the "Add display variables" screen. Enter the variables listed in the "Table 6-1 List of adjustment variables in the program", and then click the [OK] button.



- Variable Monito	or	
Variable nam	е Туре	Value
PDly1	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)
PDly2	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)
PUp1	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,-30.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)
PUp2	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,-30.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)

(3) Double-click the variable you want to change, and change the appropriate value for displayed in the "Edit Position data".

Name: PUp1 Name: PUp1 Туре Туре XYZ XYZ Joint Joint Work Coordinate Work Coordinate 0.000 X: X: 0.000 Robot: Robot: 0.000 0.000 Y: 1:RV-7FR-D Ŧ Y: 1:RV-7FR-D -30.000 -50.000 🔽 Z: Z: Get Current Pos. Get Current Pos. 0.000 0.000 A: A: 0.000 B: 0.000 B: 0.000 0.000 C: C: 0.000 0.000 L1: L1: 0.000 0.000 🗸 L2: L2: L,B,F L,B,F FLG1: Edit FLG1 Edit FLG1 FLG1: 0 FLG2: Edit FLG2 FLG2: 0 Edit FLG2 ОК Cancel Cancel OK

For example, change to "-50" from "-30" the value of the Z-coordinate of the PUp1 :

(4) Click [OK] button, and confirm that was able to change the value of the variable that is specified in the "Variable Monitor".

٢	variable Monicor		
	Variable name	Туре	Value
	PDly1	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)
	PDly2	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)
	PUp1	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,-50.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)
	PUp2	Position	(+0.00,+0.00,-30.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00,+0.00)(,)

(5) Return to the "6.3.11.3 Automatic Operation", and then check to see whether the can be corrected by implementing the automatic operation.

# 6.4 Troubleshooting

In this chapter, we explain cause and measure when an error occurred.

Error number related to coordinated control for additional axes is below.

# $\blacksquare\blacksquare\blacksquare\blacksquare\Box\Box \diamondsuit \diamondsuit\diamondsuit$

Function	on number
----------	-----------

- 0 : Additional axis tracking
- 1 :Base coordinate corporate control
- :Mechanism number
- ♦♦ : Servo axis number

Table 6-15 The list of error related to coordinated control for additional axes.

Error number	Error cause and measures		
L2660	60 One of the following errors was detected.		
	Please take appropriate measures corresponding to the error message.		
	Error message	Error concerning axis coop.	
	Cause	The error concerning the axis coop occurred.	
	Masures	Please Confirm the content by a detail number of the error.	
	Error message	Illegal robot No(axis tracking).	
	Cause	The designated robot No. is illegal.	
	Masures	Set the correct robot No.	
	Error message	Illegal robot No(base coop).	
	Cause	The designated robot No. is illegal.	
	Masures	Set the correct robot No.	
	Error message	Illegal axis No(axis tracking).	
	Cause	The designated axis No. is illegal.	
	Masures	Set the correct axis No.	
	Error message	Illegal axis No( base coop).	
	Cause	The designated axis No. is illegal.	
	Masures	Set the correct axis No.	
	Error message	Illegal unit system (axis tracking).	
	Cause	A rotary axis is designated	
	Masures	Please designate a linear drive axis.	
	Error message	Illegal unit system (base coop).	
	Cause	A rotary axis is designated	
	Masures	Please designate a linear drive axis.	
	Error message	Origin unsetting (axis tracking).	
	Cause	Axis tracking cannot be executed because of origin unsetting.	
	Masures	Please set the origin and turn the power OFF and ON.	
	Error message	Origin unsetting (base coop).	
	Cause	Axis tracking cannot be executed because of origin unsetting.	
	Masures	Please set the origin and turn the power OFF and ON.	
L2661	One of the followin	g errors was detected.	
	Please take approp	priate measures corresponding to the error message.	
	Error message	Error concerning axis coop (combi.).	
	Cause	The function cannot be used at the same time with the axis coop.	
	Masures	Please confirm the content by a detailed number of the error.	
	Error message	Cannot be used (base coop).	
	Cause	Tracking function is effective.	
	Masures	Invalidate the tracking function.	
	Error message	Cannot be used (axis tracking).	
	Cause	A synchronous addition axis control is effective.	
	Masures	Invalidate a synchronous addition axis control.	

Error number	Error cause and measures		
	Error message	Cannot be used (base coop).	
	Cause	A synchronous addition axis control is effective.	
	Masures	Invalidate a synchronous addition axis control.	
	Error message	Jrc cannot be executed.	
	Cause	The base coop is executing.	
	Masures	Please do not use Jrc command.	
Error message		Interpolation cannot be executed.	
	Cause	An addition axis is going to move.	
Masures		Please do not move an addition axis.	
	Error message	Cannot be used (base coop).	
	Cause	Interference avoidance function is effective.	
	Masures	Invalidate the interference avoidance function.	
L2662	Error message	Work setting cannot be changed.	
	Cause	The work coop is executing.	
	Masures	Please change after the axis tracking is invalid.	
H2663 *	Error message	Origin data was changed	
	Cause	Origin data was changed about the base cooperation target axis	
	Masures	Turn the power OFF and ON once.	

(\*1) An error with \* is an error requiring a power reset.

# 7. Appendix

# 7.1 Display of option card information

You can display the option card information in RT ToolBox3 option. When you click "Online"->"Board"->"Slotn (n = 1 to 2): MELFA Smart Plus" of the tree on the workspace in online state, you can read MELFA Smart Plus card information in the property window.

\* Option card information in property window is not updated automatically. If you want to update, change it to offline once and change it to online, then perform the above operation again.



Figure 7-1 Example of display of option card information in RT ToolBox3
Display item		Display example	Meaning	Software version of controller	Remarks
Card name		MELFA Smart Plus	Card name	Ver. A1 or later	
		MELFA Smart Plus A-type		Ver. A3 or later	
		MELFA Smart Plus B-type		Ver. A3 or later	
		MELFA Smart Plus AB-type		Ver. A3 or later	
Card information	[Kind]	Single function	Card type of	Ver. A1 or later	
		Multi function	MELFA Smart Plus.	Ver. A1 or later	
	[Function]	Calibration assistance	The function name set by parameter of "SMART+1".	Ver. A1 or later	In the case of MELFA Smart Plus card pack, it is blank.
		Robot temperature compensation		Ver. A1 or later	
		Coordinated control for additional axes		Ver. A1 or later	
		Preventive Maintenance		Ver. A3 or later	
		Extended function of MELFA-3D Vision		Ver. A3 or later	

Table 7-1 Card information of	of MELFA Smart P	lus card/card p	ack
-------------------------------	------------------	-----------------	-----

## MITSUBISHI ELECTRIC CORPORATION

HEAD OFFICE: TOKYO BUILDING, 2-7-3, MARUNOUCHI, CHIYODA-KU, TOKYO 100-8310, JAPAN NAGOYA WORKS: 5-1-14, YADA-MINAMI, HIGASHI-KU NAGOYA 461-8670, JAPAN Authorised representative: Mitsubishi Electric Europe B,V, FA - European Business Group Mitsubishi-Electric-Plate 1, D-40882 Ratingen, Germany Tel: +49(0)2102-4860